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ABOUT Kantone
(STOCK CODE: 1059)

Kantone Holdings Limited (“Kantone” or the
“Company”) (www.kantone.com) together with its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) is a leading provider of IT
driven communications systems with a presence in over
50 markets. It has a proven track record of high reliability
and high integrity products and systems established
by its key subsidiary in Europe with over 75 years of
extensive experience. Kantone is able to build on its
long-time client relationship to expand its business into
a multiple range of private and public sector projects
which cover both [T-related and other investments
where the Company sees synergies and favourable
return to shareholders in the long term.

Kantone is also a market leader in the provision

of software and technology infrastructure for one-
stop electronic betting solutions complete with a
secure e-commerce platform for global gaming and
entertainment activities in China.

Kantone is listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and is a subsidiary of
Champion Technology Holdings Limited, the holding
company of a communications software group.
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Financial Highlights
IR E

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
—Z-ZF C—TTNF CZTTN\F CZTTtF ZEERF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TAEL FTiEx FTiEx T
Results ¥i&
(for the year ended 30 June) (BEAA=THLEE)
- Turnover —g%8 1,289,616 1,299,684 1,613,048 1,426,505 1,346,894
- Adjusted profit* —BH (EmE) 165,909 265,306 471,368 466,035 389,659
- Adjusted EBITDA* —RETAFIE - BB - 78
TR B (aE) - 547,778 601,623 760,158 630,640 506,455
- EBITDA —ReFAFE  BE - HE
Rt 2 B 461,978 404,624 425,254 574,859 448,351
- Attributable profit — (& 82,955 71,068 143,010 412,018 332,700
- Dividends -8 20,825 18,791 51,723 120,023 93,043
— Earnings per share (in HK cents) —GREF (L) 1.61 1.61 3.99 12.67 11.42
Financial Position (as at 30 June)  Bf#AtR (RA<A=1+AH)
- Cash and cash equivalents® ~-ReRReEHE" 126,547 138,340 105,896 100,099 251,947
- Total assets -BEBE 3,057,917 2,995,040 2,545,463 2,405,056 1,923,147
- Equity o 2872938 2,789,377 2,279,155 2,124,524 1,668,550
Financial Ratios (as at 30 June) Btk =E(RAA=1H)
- Current assets/Current liabilities —-RBBE/FREaR 6.72 7.34 456 3.14 4.26
- Assets/Equity —BE/ R 1.06 1.07 1.12 1.13 1.15
- Sales/Assets —BEH/EE 0.42 0.43 0.63 0.59 0.70
— Gearing ratio —EERLE 0.02 0.01 0.02 0.04 0.05
* Excluding impairment, fair value change of convertible bonds and *ORETARE - TRBREFAFEEZSH REMIERESER
other non-cash items
* Excluding bank overdrafts v TBERERITEX
EARNINGS PROFILE (1996-2010) B F ek (1996-2010)
(in HK$ million) (B&%T)
Adjusted EBITDA
REPARME - BIE - 8 RBHZ AR (ERHE)
s EBITDA
RetAME - BIE - 78 Rk 2 2T
Profit
=l 760
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187 o .
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Chairman’s Statement

Dear Shareholders,

The greater part of the year under review continued to be
affected by the uncertain business climate. In the markets in
which we operate, tight controls continued to be exercised in
public and private sector spending, thereby slowing the pace of
growth. Even though economic data released from time to time
has shown signs of recovery, the numbers have not necessarily
equated to any sustainable improvement. While large scale
enterprises have benefitted from government stimulus
measures, smaller businesses across the world have far from
realised the structural re-alignment required for meaningful
recovery.

Viewed against that background, we have achieved
satisfactory results for the year ended 30 June 2010.
Investment in innovative solutions continues to hold the key
to maintaining the Group’s momentum amid volatile market
conditions. We have also demonstrated our clear focus in
managing risks and finances during a difficult period.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The Group’s financial performance is summarised as below:

e Turnover was HK$1,290 million

e Profit for the year increased by 17 percent to HK$80 million

e Adjusted EBITDA (excluding impairment) was HK$548
million

e Profit attributable to owners of the Company rose 17
percent to HK$83 million

e Earnings per share was HK1.61 cents

The Group maintains a positive financial position with net cash,
adheres to a prudent financial management policy, and does
not enter into speculative derivatives or structured product
transactions.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The board of directors have recommended the payment of a
final dividend of HK0.20 cents per share for the year ended
30 June 2010. Together with the interim dividend of HK0.20
cents per share, the total dividend per share for the year would
be HKO0.40 cents, and total dividend for the year would be
HK$20.8 million.

Kantone Holdings Limited
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FOCUS ON NICHE MARKET COMMUNICATIONS
SOLUTIONS

Kantone is widely recognised as a global leader in providing
integrated wired and wireless networking solutions in the
mission critical services sector. The demand for innovative
communications systems and integrated solutions continued,
especially in the growing China market. Globally, the increasing
concern about public safety and homeland security amid
recurrent terrorist attacks has resulted in pressing need for
defense quality radio systems and detection devices by law
enforcement organisations. This, combined with the private
sector demand across the board, gives promise to new
opportunities for the Group’s products and solutions.

The Group has a proven track record in providing mission
critical communications systems to the healthcare and
emergency services sector. In particular, its command

and control communications (CCC) solutions over multiple
networks such as two-way radio, public safety radio (TETRA,
or terrestrial trunk radio), Wi-Fi, wireless messaging and SMS
(short messaging services) are well-received in the public
safety and secure communications sector. In markets where
comparable figures are published, Kantone lays claim to some
significant achievements. In the United Kingdom, for example,
it currently provides wireless messaging solutions to around
60 percent of the National Health Services hospitals, and
around 80 percent of the fire brigades. In emerging markets
such as China, the Group enjoys a trusted relationship with its
customers as a result of its proven track record as a reliable
technology partner established over the last 20 years.



OUTLOOK

The directors remain alert to further difficulties and
challenges that may arise, despite some signs of easing
of the global economic slowdown. Markets are expected
to remain unsettled as fears grow over the health of the
European economy, and the concerns of a double dip
recession in the United States as government rescue
efforts have failed to turn around the unemployment

rate. Aggressive spending has further undermined the
financial health of the US. Fortunately, the Group has
built, and will continue to build on China’s large economy
which is marked by stable growth, gradual structural
improvement, and basic price stability, thanks to “massive
stimulus measures that have proved timely, forceful,
effective and specially suited to the Mainland’s realities”,
according to Premier Wen Jiabao who spoke at the
World Economic Forum held in September. Meanwhile,

in formulating the “12th Five-Year” National Plan which
covers the years from 2011 to 2015, Central Government
has emphasised promoting science and technology
innovation. Notwithstanding some bright spots in China’s
economic outlook, Premier Wen issued a stark warning on
the overheated property market, and the need to introduce
measures to rein in inflation and maintain social stability.

The cautious attitude was reiterated at the Asia-Europe
Meeting (ASEM) held in Brussels in early October, when
Premier Wen warned that “currently the world economy
sees slow recovery but still faces great uncertainty.”
Premier Wen added that “all countries should continue to
prioritise consolidating the momentum of the economic
recovery and maintain proper macroeconomic policies.
They should take prudent and sound approach to decide
when and how fast they should apply the exit policy.”

(6 October, Xinhua News Agency, Beijing) As such, we
will continue our prudent stand on financial planning and
management.
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Chairman’s Statement

The Group’s strategy going forward will be continued focus on
expanding our portfolio of products and services to maintain
growth and achieve an overall margin improvement. Such
strategy naturally entails further research and development,
as well as investments, especially in China which continues
to present enormous opportunities in a broad spectrum of
industry sectors. The Group will also strive to strengthen

its position in the niche markets tailored to customers’
specialised requirements by focusing on developing a wide
range of mission critical solutions. The Group may also
pursue investments and related opportunities in the arena
of information medicine and green technology where global
demand continues to surge.

APPRECIATION

Our solid performance over the years has been built upon

the established relationships with all our stakeholders. | wish
to take this opportunity to sincerely thank our shareholders,
employees worldwide, customers, partners, bankers,
professional consultants, honorary advisors and our fellow
directors for their trust, confidence and continued support. As
we forge ahead in an extremely competitive and challenging
global environment, such support and trust is invaluable to our
long-term development and success.

Paul KAN Man Lok
Chairman

19 October 2010

Kantone Holdings Limited
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FINANCIAL RESULTS

For the year under review (the “Year’), the Group’s turnover
remained stable at HK$1,290 million, as compared with
HK$1,300 million of the previous year (the “Previous Year”).
Profit for the Year was HK$80 million, a rise of 17 percent,
and profit attributable to owners of the Company was HK$83
million as compared with HK$71 million of Previous Year.
Earnings per share for the Year was HK1.61 cents, same

as the Previous Year. Amid slow economic recovery, gross
margin continued to be under pressure, declining to 23.8
percent from 30.5 percent of Previous Year. The drop was
exacerbated by sluggish turnover growth on one hand and
increasing amortisation on the Group’s continued investment
in the development of advanced technology products on the
other. EBITDA for the Year increased by 14 percent to HK$462
million from HK$405 million of Previous Year. Faced with the
ongoing uncertain economic environment and challenging
market conditions, the Group had taken prudent measures to
recognise impairment losses of HK$85.8 million for deposits
and prepaid development costs for systems and networks.
Excluding the impairment losses, adjusted EBITDA for the
Year was HK$548 million, compared with HK$602 million of
Previous Year.

The Group continues to review and implement cost
controlling measures. Increases in some operating expenses
were partially offset by decreases in other expense items.
Distribution costs dropped 7 percent to HK$39.5 million.
General and administrative expenses went up 17 percent

to HK$108 million (2009: HK$92 million), attributable to the
increase in research and development expenses to HK$13
million (2009: HK$5.5 million) aimed at maintaining product
competitiveness and market niche. Staff costs increased

to HK$103 million from HK$96 million. Depreciation and
amortisation expenses went up 15 percent to HK$381 million
(2009: HK$331 million) as a result of the continued roll-out of
new projects.

Finance costs for the Year were further reduced to HK$0.5
million compared with HK$4 million of Previous Year as a result
of the prevailing low interest rate. The Group’s financial position
remains positive with net cash.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

In China, the Group has benefited from the Central
Government’s backing of the science and technology sector
as a core industry under its stimulus package to boost growth
and ward off the global slump. Sales and marketing activities
for Kantone’s customised solutions and products continued.
[T expenditure in key verticals such as government, education,
and telecoms remained stable. In response to the opening up
of new generation wireless networks and new and increasing
demand for a broad range of IT and communications solutions
across a number of different public and business sectors,

the Group has expanded its product portfolio to embrace

Kantone Holdings Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis

a comprehensive range of integrated wireless solutions
and web-based monitoring systems designed for remote
management and security applications.

For the Year, China sales remained stable at HK$832 million,
compared with HK$836 million of Previous Year.

In Europe, the global economic climate continued to influence
the Group’s trading position. The austerity measures adopted
by the governments across Europe have slowed spending
and delayed project rollout. The Group was however able to
maintain momentum and registered profit due to its product
niche and new offerings that met customers’ requirements.
Sales and marketing activities in emergency services, fire
control projects, as well as the NHS (National Health Services)
projects in the UK continued. Delay in a significant emergency
project in England was compensated by new orders in

other sectors, where the Group’s range of personal security
products was well-received. German market was sluggish

but the Group managed to maintain turnover, reflecting the
success in revamping our German team and the introduction
of new products. The fundamentals of the overall economy in
Europe, however, remained quite fragile.

Turnover of European operations was HK$364 million,
compared with HK$354 million of Previous Year.

For e-gaming and online entertainment, Kantone continued

to provide integrated gaming technology solutions, online
payment channels and sales networks. As new legislation and
provisions governing the operation of lottery in Mainland China
come into force, Kantone has to adjust its business model
accordingly. Such investments were subject to periodic review
to determine if progress was in line with original plans, and if
the anticipated benefits could be achieved. Where required,
impairment provisions at appropriate level are made.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

Financial Position and Gearing

The Group maintained a positive financial position throughout
the Year. It financed its operation and business development
with internally generated resources, capital markets
instruments and banking facilities.

As at 30 June 2010, the Group had HK$127 million (2009:
HK$138 million) liquid assets made up of deposits, bank
balances and cash. Current assets were approximately
HK$609 million (2009: HK$668 million) and current liabilities
amounted to approximately HK$91 million (2009: HK$91
million). With net current assets of HK$518 million (2009:
HK$577 million), the Group maintained a comfortable level of
liquidity. The gearing ratio of the Group, defined as the Group’s
total borrowings of HK$47 million (2009: HK$40 million) to
equity attributable to owners of the Company of HK$2,873
million (2009: HK$2,789 million), was 0.016 (2009: 0.014).



Total borrowings mainly comprised bank loans of HK$47.2
million (2009: HK$40.2 million, comprising bank loans and
other borrowings of HK$40 million and HK$0.2 million
respectively). Finance costs for the Year amounted to
HK$0.5 million (2009: HK$4 million).

The bank loans comprised amount of HK$18.2 million
(2009: HK$3.0 million) repayable within one year, HK$4.2
million (2009: HK$4.6 million) repayable in the second year
and HK$24.8 million (2009: HK$32.5 million) repayable in
the third year. Bank loans of HK$33.2 million were secured
by the Group’s land and buildings with a carrying value of
HK$7.9 million (2009: HK$10.3 million).

Treasury Policy

The Group is committed to financial prudence and
maintains a positive financial position with low gearing. The
Group finances its operation and business development
by a combination of internally generated resources, capital
markets instruments and banking facilities.

All the borrowings were used by subsidiaries of the
Company bearing interest at floating rates and were
denominated in their local currencies. As such, the
currency risk exposure associated with the Group’s
borrowings was insignificant.

The Group does not engage in speculative derivatives or
structured product transactions, interest rate or foreign
exchange speculative activities. It is the Group’s policy to
manage foreign exchange risk through matching foreign
exchange income with expense, and where exposure

to foreign exchange is anticipated, appropriate hedging
instruments will be used.

Capital Commitments

As at 30 June 2010, the Group’s capital commitments
authorised but not contracted for was HK$76 million
(2009: HK$90 million). The Group has set aside sufficient
internally generated funds for the acquisition of property,
plant and equipment, and development of systems and
networks.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION
POLICY

As at 30 June 2010, the Group employed about 700

staff around the globe. Staff costs for the year under
review were HK$103 million (2009: HK$96 million).
Remuneration is determined with reference to market
terms and the performance, qualifications and experience
of the individual employee. Remuneration includes monthly
salaries, performance-linked bonuses, retirement benefits
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme, and other
benefits such as medical scheme.

Management Discussion and Analysis

The Company has established a Human Resources and
Remuneration Committee. In determining the remuneration

of the directors, the committee will consider factors such as
the Company’s operating results, individual performance,
salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment and
responsibilities of the directors, employment conditions and
desirability of performance-based remuneration.

FINAL DIVIDEND AND SCRIP DIVIDEND
SCHEME

Subject to the approval of shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company, the board of directors
have proposed a final dividend of HKO0.20 cents per share

for the year ended 30 June 2010 (2009: HKO.15 cents per
share) to shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on 29 November 2010. Taking into
account the interim dividend of HK0.20 cents (2009: HK0.25
cents) per share paid on 11 June 2010, total dividend per
share would be HK0.40 cents (2009: HK0.40 cents); and total
dividend for the year would be HK$20.8 million, compared with
HK$18.8 million of last year.

The final dividend will be satisfied by allotment of new shares of
the Company, credited as fully paid, by way of scrip dividend,
with an alternative to the shareholders to elect to receive such
dividend (or part thereof) in cash in lieu of such allotment (the
“Scrip Dividend Scheme”).

The Scrip Dividend Scheme is subject to the granting by the
Listing Committee of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited of a listing of and permission to deal in the shares to
be issued pursuant thereto. A circular setting out the details of
the Scrip Dividend Scheme together with the form of election
will be sent to the shareholders of the Company as soon as
practicable.

It is expected that certificates for shares to be issued under
the Scrip Dividend Scheme and dividend warrants will be
despatched to those entitled thereto on or before 17 January
2011.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed

from 25 November 2010 to 29 November 2010, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares of the
Company will be effected. In order to qualify for the above final
dividend and the Scrip Dividend Scheme, all transfers of shares
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the Company’s Branch Share Registrars in Hong Kong,
Tricor Secretaries Limited at 26th Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong no later than 4:30
p.m. on 24 November 2010.

Kantone Holdings Limited
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Paul KAN Man Lok, 63, is the founder and Chairman. He is
also the Chairman and an executive director of both Champion
Technology Holdings Limited (“Champion Technology”), which
is the holding company of the Company listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Exchange”), and DIGITALHONGKONG.COM (“Digital HK”),
which is a fellow subsidiary of the Company and is listed on
the GEM Board of the Exchange. Mr. Kan holds a Master’s
degree in Business Administration from the Chinese University
of Hong Kong, and has over 40 years of experience in the
computing and telecommunications industries. Prior to setting
up the Champion Technology group in 1987, he was the
general manager in charge of Asiadata Limited, a joint venture
computing services company of Cable & Wireless Group,
HSBC, Jardines and Barclays.

Mr. Kan has received a number of prestigious awards from
several governments and various local and international
professional bodies in recognition of his contribution to the
community and the industry. Government awards include
Commander of the most Excellent Order of the British

Empire (CBE) by Her Majesty Queen Elizabeth Il (2006);
Commendatore dell’Ordine della Stella della Solidarieta Italiana
by the Italian Prime Minister Hon. Romano Prodi (2006); the
Hong Kong SAR Government’s appointment as a Justice of
the Peace (2006); Chevalier de I'Ordre de la Légion d’Honneur
by the Government of France (2007); and Silver Bauhinia Star
by the Hong Kong SAR Government (2009).

Professional awards include Young Industrialist Award (1992);
Hong Kong Business Award-Enterprise Trophy (1993);
Governor’s Award for Hong Kong Industries (1989); Honorary
Doctor of Humane Letters Degree by the University of Northern
Virginia, United States (2005) and Honorary Fellow of the
Academy of Chinese Studies (2005).

In civic duties, Mr. Kan served twice on the Exchange
Corporate Governance Working Group during 1994 — 1995
and 1999 — 2000, and was a member of the Listing Committee
of the Exchange for the period 1999 — 2003. He is currently
the Chairman for the fifth successive term of the Hong

Kong Information Technology Industry Council; Chairman of
Hong Kong IT Alliance; Chairman of the Hong Kong Trade
Development Council Information and Communications
Technology Services Advisory Committee (2006 — 2010);
Chairman of ICT Working Group, Hong Kong — United
Kingdom Business Partnership (2004 — 2007); Convener of
Hungarian — Hong Kong Innovative Business Council; General
Committee Member of the Federation of Hong Kong Industries;
and Member of HKSAR Chief Executive Election Committee
for the IT sector. Other memberships include the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference of Anhui Province
in the PRC, and the Election Committee for the Hong Kong
representatives of National People’s Congress of China.
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Directors and Senior Management Profile

In November 2009, Mr. Kan was appointed as a member of
the Council of The Chinese University of Hong Kong. He had
been an independent non-executive director of CLP Holdings
Limited for 9 years from 2001 until he retired in April 2010.

LAl Yat Kwong, 62, is the Acting Chief Executive Officer
and Chief Financial Officer of the Company. He is also the
Chief Financial Officer and an executive director of Champion
Technology, as well as a non-executive director of Digital

HK. He joined the Champion Technology group in March
1994 as Vice President of Internal Audit and Control. In July
1997, he took on responsibility as the Chief Financial Officer
of the Company. He holds a Bachelor’s degree in Business
Administration from the Chinese University of Hong Kong and
has over 38 years of experience in accounting, auditing and
company secretarial matters. He is a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (Practising).

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Leo KAN Kin Leung, 54, is a non-executive director of

the Company. He is also the Chief Executive Officer and an
executive director of Champion Technology, as well as a non-
executive director of Digital HK. He is a brother of Paul Kan
Man Lok, Chairman of the Company. He is responsible for
formulating the Champion Technology group’s overall policy
and development strategy as well as its global operations
and management. Prior to joining the Champion Technology
group in 1988, Mr. Kan held management positions in several
international companies in Hong Kong. He holds a Master’s
degree in Business Administration from Dalhousie University
in Canada and a Master’s degree in Economics from the
University of Alberta in Canada. In 2006, Mr. Kan completed
the Oxford Advanced Management Programme at the Said
Business School of the University of Oxford.

Mr. Kan is the Vice Chairman of Hong Kong IT Alliance as
well as the Chairman of its IT Committee. He also serves

on Internet Professional Association as Honorary Secretary
and a Council Member, and Co-Chairman of Special Interest
Group in Venture Capital and New Business Development.
Mr. Kan is Member of the Technical Standards Advisory
Committee at the Office of the Telecommunications Authority;
Member of the CreateSmart Initiative Vetting Committee of
the Hong Kong SAR Government; Member of the School

of Continuing Education Advisory Committee of the Hong
Kong Baptist University; Member of the Ad Hoc Committee
for International Outreach and Multi-national Corporations of
the Federation of Hong Kong Industries; and Member of the
Design Council of Hong Kong. He serves on a number of sub-
committees of the Hong Kong Information Technology Industry
Council of the Federation of Hong Kong Industries, including
International Development and Co-operation Sub-committee
and Sub-vented Funding Sub-committee. In particular, he

is the Convener of China Investment, Development and Co-
operation Sub-committee. Mr. Kan is also an Executive
Committee Member of the Hong Kong Information Technology
Joint Council.



Shirley HA Suk Ling, 54, has been a non-executive director
of the Company since November 2004. She is the Chief
Executive Officer and an executive director of Digital HK, as
well as a non-executive director of Champion Technology. She
joined Champion Technology in 1992 as its Executive Vice
President with responsibility for its corporate development. She
has over 25 years of business experience including 10 years in
investment banking.

Ms. Ha holds a Bachelor’s degree in Arts from the University of
Hong Kong and a Master’s degree in Business Administration
from the Chinese University of Hong Kong. She currently
serves as Member of the Personal Data (Privacy) Advisory
Committee of the Office of the Privacy Commissioner for
Personal Data, Hong Kong; Member of Digital 21 Strategy
Advisory Committee; Member of the Assessment Panel for
the DesignSmart Initiative; and Mentor under the Mentorship
Programme of the Hong Kong Science and Technology
Parks Corporation. She is a General Committee Member of
the Federation of Hong Kong Industries and Vice Chairman
of the Hong Kong Information Technology Industry Council;
Council Member of Internet Professional Association and Co-
Chairman of Special Interest Group in Venture Capital and
New Business Development; Senior Member of the Hong
Kong Information Technology Joint Council; and member of
the Hong Kong Corporate Counsel Association. She is also
Honorary Secretary of Hungarian — Hong Kong Innovative
Business Council.

Paul Michael James KIRBY, 63, has been a non-
executive director of the Company since November 2004.
He is a non-executive director of Multitone Electronics

Plc, a subsidiary of the Company. He has over 30 years of
experience in the telecommunications industry of which 17
years were with Cable & Wireless PLC (“C&W plc”). He was
formerly the Head of Corporate Affairs and a member of the
Executive Management Committee, with responsibility for all
aspects of investor relations and public affairs of C&W plc.
Since 1991, Mr. Kirby has been acting as an independent
Telecommunications Management Consultant specialising in
business development and flotation strategy.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Frank BLEACKLEY, 73, has been an independent non-
executive director of the Company since November 2001. He
is also an independent non-executive director of Champion
Technology. He was formerly Managing Director of Chubb
China Holdings Limited, a subsidiary of the Chubb Security
Group, a manufacturer and distributor of security and safety
products and systems headquartered in the United Kingdom.
He has considerable experience in the management and
business development of joint venture companies in Hong
Kong and Mainland China.

Directors and Senior Management Profile

Professor Julia TSUEI Jo, 83, has been an independent
non-executive director of the Company since October

2003. She has over 40 years of experience in medicine

and biomedical research, in particular, Traditional Chinese
Medicine. She had taught in the various medical schools in
USA, Taiwan and China and is therefore well-acclaimed in
the Chinese community of biological medicine research. Her
research achievements in bridging east-west medicine also
earned her much recognition in the international arena, as
demonstrated by the numerous awards she received in the
past. These include the Lifetime Achievement Award granted
by the International Institute for Advanced Studies in Systems
Research and Cybernetics, Baden-Baden, Germany in 2001;
the Founding Patron and Lifetime Member conferred by the
American Association of Acupuncture and Oriental Medicine in
1991; Chairman of Acupuncture Research Foundation of the
Acupuncture and Moxibustion Society of China during 1995-
2005; as well as founder of the International Medical Science
Research Foundation in the US and Taiwan in 1988.

Professor Tsuei is presently President of Foundation for East-
West Medicine, USA; Board member of Chinese Acupuncture
and Medical Science Research Foundation; Professor
Emeritus of School of Public Health, University of Hawaii, USA,;
Director of Clinic for East-West Medicine, Taiwan; Founding
Director of Graduate Institute of Traditional Chinese Medicine,
National Yang-Ming University, Taiwan; and Consultant of
China Medical University.

Miranda HO Mo Han, 40, has been an independent non-
executive director of the Company since January 2008.

She is also the Chairman of the audit committee of the
Company. She is a director of Billy Ho and Associates CPA
Limited and is a Certified Public Accountant (Practising) of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants; a
Fellow Member of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors; and
an Associate Member of the American Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. She holds a Master’s degree in Business
Administration from Oklahoma City University, USA. Ms Ho has
participated in community services as a member of the Hong
Kong Federation of Zhong Shan Unions & Association Limited
for years.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Jennifer CHEUNG Mei Ha, 54, has been the Company
Secretary since January 2005. She is a solicitor practising in
Hong Kong. She is also the Company Secretary of Champion
Technology and Digital HK.

Kantone Holdings Limited
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

FUNG Kin Leung, 49, is the Group’s Head of Innovation
with responsibilities for managing the Group’s research and
development capacity to facilitate its global operations. He

is also a director of several of the Group’s subsidiaries and

a Senior Vice President of Microelectronics of Champion
Technology. Mr. Fung has over 20 years’ experience in
software and product development. He joined the Champion
Technology group in 1987 as Technical Manager, and was
promoted through the ranks to his current position. In recent
years, he has been focusing on the development of information
delivery systems to enhance wireless Internet applications. He
holds a Bachelor’s degree in Science and Electronics from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University and a Master’s degree in
Electronics Engineering from the University of Hong Kong. He
is a Chartered Engineer as well as a member of the Institution
of Electrical Engineers and the Hong Kong Institution of
Engineers.

Stephen GENTRY, 54, is the Group’s Head of

International Businesses and Chief Executive of Multitone,
with responsibilities for formulating the overall policy and
development strategy for the Group’s international operations.
He is also a director of several of the Group’s subsidiaries. He
joined the Group in 1988 as financial accountant of the UK
operations, and has considerable experience working for the
Group’s various European and American operations. He was
promoted to the position of Chief Executive of Multitone in
2003 and is a member of the Institute of Directors.

Frank ROTTHOFF, 47, is Managing Director of the Group’s
German operations. He joined the Group in 2008 and has
extensive experience in sales and marketing management
within the electronics industry. His earlier career covered
international sales of industrial machinery and process
technology before entering the semiconductor sector in 1989.
He was responsible for the sales organisation of a leading
European distributor of electronic components before joining
the Group.

Ron WRAY, 49, is Technical Director, with responsibilities
for overseeing the Group’s technical operations as well as
developing the strategy for the Group’s investment in research
and development. He has over 25 years of experience in the
Radio and the Electronics Industry and the Royal Navy. He is
an associate member of the Institute of Sales and Marketing
Managers and a member of the Institute of Directors.
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Neil GRIFFITHS, 54, is Operations Director with
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s production
facilities in Europe and Asia. He holds a Master of Science
degree in business management and further qualifications

in management studies. He has considerable experience

in electronic component manufacturing and continuous
improvement techniques, and is qualified in using the six
sigma philosophy. He has extensive experience in a wide
range of manufacturing philosophies such as JIT (Just in Time),
Kan Ban plus lean techniques as well as budgetary control,
product testing, new product introduction, cost-reduction and
profitability initiatives within leading-edge markets.

Philip LAWRENCE, 52, is Finance Director for the Group’s
European operations. He is a Fellow of the Chartered Institute
of Management Accountants and has worked in finance for
over 30 years. He has worked in various companies ranging
from large international company in the world to SMEs (small
medium enterprises) covering engineering, fast moving
consumer goods, power, transport, care, warehousing and
distribution.

Clive McGOVERN, 48, is Director of Sales for the Group’s
European operations having previously worked at a senior level
for technology businesses both in Europe and America. He

is @ member of the Institute of Directors and of the Chartered
Institute of Marketing. He holds a Master of Science degree
and a Bachelor of Science degree. His business experience
encompasses Sales, Marketing, Support Engineering,
European Patent Law as well Accounting and Finance.

Robert KANE, 53, recently joined Multitone as UK Sales
Manager with over 20 years’ experience at executive level
managing international sales and marketing groups in Europe
and North America within the semiconductor industry. With

a background as an Engineer, he has a breadth of business
experience and consistent track record of growing sales in
challenging markets.



Helen BROWN, 56, joined the Group in 1991 and is Head of
Human Resources for the Group’s international operations.
She is qualified with the Institute of Personnel Development
and has extensive experience covering employment legislation,
industrial relations, change management, recruitment and
human resources policy.

Luiz Octavio VILLA-LOBOS, 49, is Managing Director of
the Group’s Brazilian operations with responsibility for running
and developing business in South America. He is also Vice
President of Interactive Knowledge Delivery for Champion
Technology group’s International Operations, overseeing
international clients’ requirements for enterprise solutions. He
joined the Group in 1997 and set up from its inception the
business in Brazil. He holds a Master’s degree in Aerospace
Engineering from Sup’Aero in France and a MBA from the
London Business School.

WANG Yu Peng, 45, was appointed as Chief Operating
Officer, e-Lottery Business of the Company in September
2005. He is the founder of a member company of the Group
which is a pioneer systems developer and service provider in
paperless betting systems in China, and a graduate of Tsing
Hua University in Computer Science. He owns two invention
patents in telephone betting systems.

Roy GOSS, 67, is Director of International Business, with
responsibility for the Group’s contract negotiation, licensee
management, agency distribution and customer liaison. He
is based in Macau and is also a director of several of the
Group’s subsidiaries. Mr. Goss is a seasoned expert in finance
and telecommunications, having served in the Middle East
and Macau with Cable and Wireless companies for almost
20 years. He is a fellow member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales. Prior to joining the
Champion Technology group, he was the Finance Director of
Macau Telecommunications Company, a subsidiary of Cable
and Wireless PLC, where he worked for more than 17 years.
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Sl Ya Qing, 47, is Head of Systems Team for China
operation, with responsibility for the Group’s software project
development in the region. He oversees outsourcing and
distribution activities and manages customer and licensee
relationship. He started working for the Group in 1985

after graduating from the Beijing University of Posts and
Telecommunications, where he majored in communication
and computers. He has extensive experience in research
and development of network and information security and
communication.

Ben CHAN Ping Yim, 46, is Head of Logistics and Distribution
in China. He regularly liaises with licensees, agents and
distributors, and coordinates the Group’s licensing operations
in the region. Prior to joining the Group in 1994, Mr. Chan had
worked in the field of marketing and advertising in China. He
has wide experience in logistics and distribution of electronic
products.

WAN Yan Chang, 58, is Head of Administration and
Accounting in China responsible for overseeing the day-to-
day administrative procedures for the Group’s quality control,
assurance of logistics operations, as well as licensee and
customer relationship in the territory. Ms. Wan joined the Group
in 1993. She has extensive experience in China trade.
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EEERE

The directors present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 June
2010.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in sales of systems and
licensing, (including sales of systems products, software
licensing and customisation, provision of services and leasing
of systems products, provision of e-lottery services and
development and provision of [T solutions for e-gaming, leisure
and entertainment), and holding strategic investments in
advanced technology product development companies and
e-commerce projects.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2010
are set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income on page 27 and in the accompanying notes to the
consolidated financial statements. An interim dividend in scrip
form equivalent to HK0.20 cents per share, with a cash option,
was distributed to the shareholders during the year. A final
dividend in scrip form equivalent to HKO.20 cents per share,
with a cash option, is proposed by the directors.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 28 to the consolidated
financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVE OF THE COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for distribution represent
the aggregate of dividend reserve, special reserve and retained
profits of HK$270,903,000 (2009: HK$227,402,000).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 13 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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DIRECTORS AND SERVICE CONTRACTS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive directors:
Mr. Paul Kan Man Lok
Mr. Lai Yat Kwong

Non-executive directors:
Mr. Leo Kan Kin Leung

Mr. Paul Michael James Kirby
Ms. Shirley Ha Suk Ling

Independent non-executive directors:
Mr. Frank Bleackley

Prof. Julia Tsuei Jo

Ms. Miranda Ho Mo Han

In accordance with Article 87 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Paul Michael James Kirby, Ms. Shirley Ha Suk
Ling and Ms. Miranda Ho Mo Han will retire by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

No director being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

Each of the non-executive directors has a service contract
with the Company for a term up to three years subject to
retirement by rotation as required by the Company’s Articles of
Association. The executive directors do not have any service
contract with the Company.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company confirms it has received from each of its
independent non-executive directors an annual confirmation
of his/her independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”), and considers that the
independent non-executive directors are independent.
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Directors’ Report

EEEHRE

SHARE OPTIONS AND DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO
ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Each of the Company, its ultimate holding company,
Champion Technology Holdings Limited (“Champion”), and a
fellow subsidiary, DIGITALHONGKONG.COM (“Digital HK”),
has a share option scheme under which eligible persons,
including directors of the Company, Champion, Digital HK or
any of their respective subsidiaries, may be granted options to
subscribe for shares of the Company, Champion and Digital
HK respectively.

(i) The Company
On 29 November 2002, the Company adopted the share
option scheme (the “Scheme”) which will expire on 28
November 2012. No option has been granted by the
Company under the Scheme. Particulars of the Scheme
are set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial
statements.
(i) Champion
On 29 November 2002, Champion adopted a share option
scheme (the “Champion Option Scheme”). The purpose
of the Champion Option Scheme is to attract and to retain
quality personnel and other persons and to provide them
with incentive to contribute to the business and operation
of Champion and its subsidiaries (the “Champion Group”).
Under the Champion Option Scheme, the directors may
grant options to any directors, employees, consultants,
advisors in respect of business, operation, management,
technology, legal, accounting and financial matters of
Champion, its subsidiaries or affiliates or any discretionary
trust whose discretionary objects include the aforesaid
persons or a company beneficially owned by the aforesaid
persons as well as customers and suppliers of the
Champion Group, to subscribe for shares of Champion.
The option granted by Champion is exercisable at any
time for a period determined by its directors which will be
less than ten years from the date of grant. The exercise
price per share (subject to adjustment as provided therein)
of the option under the Champion Option Scheme is the
highest of (i) the nominal value of the shares; (i) the closing
price per share as stated in the daily quotation sheet of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on the date of grant, which must be a business
day; and (iii) the average closing price per share as stated
in the daily quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange for
the five business days immediately preceding the date of
grant. No option has been granted by Champion under the
Champion Option Scheme since its adoption.
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SHARE OPTIONS AND DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO
ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES - continued

(iii) DIGITAL HK
On 29 November 2002, Digital HK adopted a share option
scheme (the “DHK Option Scheme”). The purpose of the
DHK Option Scheme is to attract and to retain quality
personnel and other persons and to provide them with
incentive to contribute to the business and operation of
Digital HK and its subsidiaries (the “Digital HK Group”).
Under the DHK Option Scheme, the directors may
grant options to any directors, employees, consultants,
advisors in respect of business, operation, management,
technology, legal, accounting and financial matters of
Digital HK, its subsidiaries or affiliates or any discretionary
trust whose discretionary objects include the aforesaid
persons or a company beneficially owned by the aforesaid
persons as well as customers and suppliers of the Digital
HK Group, to subscribe for shares of Digital HK. Options
granted by Digital HK are exercisable at any time for a
period determined by its directors which will be less than
ten years from the date of grant. The exercise price per
share (subject to adjustment as provided therein) of the
option under the DHK Option Scheme is the highest of (j)
the nominal value of the shares; (i) the closing price per
share as stated in the daily quotation sheet of the Stock
Exchange on the date of grant, which must be a business
day; and (jii) the average closing price per share as stated in
the daily quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant.
No option has been granted by Digital HK under the DHK
Option Scheme since its adoption.

Other than the share option schemes described above, at no
time during the year was the Company, its holding company,
any of its fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate.
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EEEHRE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SECURITIES

As at 30 June 2010, the interests of the directors of the
Company in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFQ”)) which were recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers, were as follows:

EECRESEERKR
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Approximate
percentage

Number of the issued

Name of director Capacity of shares share capital

HERITRAE

EEnA g4 BRHEE 2=

Securities of the Company Mr. Paul Kan Man Lok Corporate interest Note 1 53.79%
PAN/NSIECES Lpe it NG 5 B3 1

Securities of Champion Mr. Paul Kan Man Lok Corporate interest Note 2 26.59%
BB (LR St NEER BiE2

Securities of Digital HK Mr. Paul Kan Man Lok Corporate interest Note 3 79.98%
B EES Lpe St NEER ]

Notes: BT

1. 2,815,507,171 shares of the Company were held by Champion. As
at 30 June 2010, Lawnside International Limited (“Lawnside”) had
interest in approximately 26.59% of the entire issued share capital
of Champion. Lawnside is beneficially wholly owned by Mr. Paul
Kan Man Lok, who was deemed to have corporate interest in the
shares of the Company owned by Champion.

2. 1,081,808,853 shares of Champion were held by Lawnside. Mr.
Paul Kan Man Lok was deemed to have corporate interest in the
shares of Champion owned by Lawnside. Lawnside also held
a convertible redeemable bond of Champion with outstanding
principal amount of HK$136,460,805.47 carrying the right to
convert the principal amount of the bond or any part thereof into
shares of Champion from 19 September 2008 to 19 September
2011 (after the exercise of the extension option by Champion on
12 August 2010) at the conversion price per share of the higher
of (i) HK$0.77 (after adjustment on 23 May 2009 as a result of a
rights issue of Champion); and (i) the volume-weighted average
price of shares of Champion for the 10 dealing days ending on the
day immediately preceding the date of a relevant conversion notice
multiplied by a factor of 0.8. The bond has not been taken into
account in calculating the percentage of the issued share capital of
Champion held by Lawnside.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SECURITIES - continued

Notes: — continued

3. 117,300,000 shares of Digital HK were held by Champion and
2,669,171 shares of Digital HK were held by Lawnside. Mr. Paul
Kan Man Lok was deemed to have corporate interests in such
shares held by Champion and Lawnside.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors or chief
executive of the Company had any interest or short position in
the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (as defined in Part XV of the
SFO) as at 30 June 2010 as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 30 June 2010, the Group had the
following transactions with Champion and its subsidiaries
(other than the Group):
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services, on cost basis ZER 500

In the opinion of the independent non-executive directors, the
above transaction relating to Champion’s provision of office
premises and facilities, and management services to the Group
(the “Management Agreement”) was carried out in the usual
course of business and on normal commercial terms and are
in accordance with the relevant agreement governing it on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Details of such connected transactions are set out in note 34
to the consolidated financial statements.

The Management Agreement constitutes a continuing
connected transaction under the Listing Rules exempt from
the reporting, announcement and shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS - continued

Save as disclosed above, no contract of significance to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which
a director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.

Save as disclosed above, there is no contract of significance
between the Group and a controlling shareholder of the
Company (as defined in the Listing Rules) or any of its
subsidiaries, including the provision of services to the Group.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 30 June 2010, the following persons (other than the
directors or chief executive of the Company) had interests

in the share capital or underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 336 of the SFO:
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B EXATIREE SN NEBEARFREEAMERRZE
BRBCR (E& R ETRAD TR EMEAAN (BERAS
ERHARTS) o

EFERR

R-Z—2EXAZTA  REEH RS K386 15658
EARRATFE A BEMAEE - THAL(RARE
FRITHABERIN) RARF 2 A AR AR 157 A 4 -

Approximate

percentage

Number of issued

Name of shareholders Capacity of shares share capital

HEBITRE

REERB 514 RDEE 2R

Champion (note 1) Beneficial owner 2,815,507,171 53.79%
HEE (MiE1) BEnlAA

Shanghai Industrial Investment Corporate interest 564,700,000 10.79%

(Holdings) Company Limited (note 2) AR

LEEX(RE)BRAE (ME2)

Notes:

1. See note 1 to the “Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in
Securities” section above.

Shanghai Industrial Investment (Holdings) Company Limited

had interest in 564,700,000 shares of the Company through
control over 100% interest in the shares of Shanghai Industrial
Financial (Holdings) Company Limited which had direct interest in
564,700,000 shares of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, no person had any interests or short
positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
according to the register of interests kept by the Company
under Section 336 of the SFO as at 30 June 2010.
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CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, OPTIONS,
WARRANTS OR SIMILAR RIGHTS

The Company had no outstanding convertible securities,
options, warrants or other similar rights as at 30 June 2010
and there had been no exercise of any convertible securities,
options, warrants or similar rights during the year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group sells its products to customers who act as its
distributors, and purchases materials and components from
suppliers who act as its merchandisers.

For the year ended 30 June 2010, the aggregate amount of
turnover and purchases attributable to the five largest ultimate
customers and suppliers through these distributors and
merchandisers respectively represented less than 30% of the
Group'’s total turnover and purchases.

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders,
which to the knowledge of the directors own more than 5%
of the Company’s issued share capital, had any interest in the
share capital of the five largest customers or suppliers of the
Company.
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REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration policy of the Group for its employees
takes into account of the individuals’ merit, qualifications and
competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided
by the Human Resources and Remuneration Committee of the
Company, having regard to the Company’s operating results,
individual performance and comparable market statistics.
Details of the directors’ emoluments for the year ended 30
June 2010 are set out in note 9 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an
incentive to directors and eligible employees. Details of the
scheme are set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors, as at the
date of this report, there is sufficient public float of not less than
25% of the Company’s issued shares as required under the
Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be proposed at the annual general meeting
to re-appoint Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the
Company.

By order of the Board

Paul Kan Man Lok
CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong
19 October 2010
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices. It met all the code provisions
in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code”)
set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”) in the year ended 30 June 2010.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transactions on terms set out in the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code”) contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules.

The Company has made specific enquiry of all directors of
the Company, and they have confirmed compliance with the
required standard set out in the Model Code during the year
ended 30 June 2010.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company is governed by a board of directors (the
“Board”) which has the responsibility for leadership and control
of the Company. The directors are collectively responsible

for promoting the success of the Group by directing and
supervising the Group’s affairs. The Board set strategies and
directions for the Group’s activities with a view to developing its
business and enhancing shareholders value.

The Board held 6 meetings during the year ended 30 June
2010. Its composition and the attendance of individual
directors at these board meetings were as follows:

Corporate Governance Report
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Number of meetings Number of
held during the meetings
director’s term of office attended
RESEH P&

Name ®H BOTZEBRE SERE
Executive directors HITES
Paul KAN Man Lok (Chairman) S8 (£ /) 6
LAl Yat Kwong (Acting Chief Executive Officer) AN (BETHAER) 6
Non-executive directors FEITES
Leo KAN Kin Leung* R~ 6
Shirley HA Suk Ling BERE 6
Paul Michael James KIRBY Paul Michael James KIRBY 6
Independent non-executive directors BIAFEHITES
Frank BLEACKLEY Frank BLEACKLEY 6
Miranda HO Mo Han GIES 6
Prof. Julia TSUEI Jo ERHIE 6
* Mr. Leo KAN Kin Leung is a brother of Mr. Paul KAN Man Lok. ¥ EBRREERMNELEZISE -

FEEEARAT
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of
the Company are segregated, with a clear division of
responsibilities.

The Chairman is responsible for the leadership of the Board,
ensuring its effectiveness in all aspects of its role and for setting
its agenda and taking into account any matters proposed by
other directors for inclusion in the agenda. Through the Board,
he is responsible for ensuring that good corporate governance
practices and procedures are followed by the Group.

The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for the day-to-day
management of the Group’s business.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The non-executive directors of the Company are appointed
for a term of up to 3 years ending on the date on which the
director shall retire by rotation at the Company’s annual general
meeting in accordance with the Code and the Articles of
Association of the Company.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The Human Resources and Remuneration Committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) has 5 members, comprising Ms.
Miranda HO Mo Han, Mr. Frank BLEACKLEY and Prof. Julia
TSUEI Jo (independent non-executive directors); and Mr. Leo
KAN Kin Leung and Ms. Shirley HA Suk Ling (non-executive
directors). The Remuneration Committee is chaired by Ms.
Miranda HO Mo Han.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee follow
the guidelines set out in the Code and it is responsible for,
among other things, making recommendations to the Board
on the Company’s policy for the remuneration of directors and
senior management.

During the year ended 30 June 2010, the Remuneration
Committee held 2 meetings and work performed includes
reviewing the Group’s remuneration policy for its executive
directors and senior management and their levels of
remuneration. All members attended these meetings.
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NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Nomination Committee has 6 members, comprising Ms.
Miranda HO Mo Han, Mr. Frank BLEACKLEY and Prof. Julia
TSUEI Jo (independent non-executive directors); and Ms.
Shirley HA Suk Ling and Mr. Paul Michael James KIRBY (non-
executive directors); and Mr. Paul KAN Man Lok (executive
director). This Committee is chaired by Ms. Miranda HO Mo
Han.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee have
been determined with reference to the Code.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for identifying
potential new directors and making recommendations to

the Board for decision. A director appointed by the Board is
subject to re-election by shareholders at the first annual
general meeting after his/her appointment. All directors are
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every 3 years.
In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, one
third of the directors are subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election by shareholders at each annual general meeting of
the Company.

Potential new directors are selected on the basis of their
qualifications, skills and experience which the Nomination
Committee considers will make a positive contribution to the
performance of the Board.

No new director was nominated for appointment during the
year ended 30 June 2010.

The Nomination Committee held 2 meetings during the year
ended 30 June 2010 and work performed includes reviewing
the structure, size and composition of the Board and the
independence of the independent non-executive directors of
the Company. All members attended these meetings.

Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

BEERA

REZECHEEZEKEMEK  BEMEMZ L  Frank
BLEACKLEY e & R ERHIR (B IEMITES) - URERIE
22+ K Paul Michael James KIRBY 44 (BEIITE ) Mo S0 42
SE(RITESR) - RBLZLTAZEZEGZER °

ARBESETREERAZE G 2 BEHE -

RERBEQAAVEBABERANIESTSZIAL  UHREF
SELRERAEERSE -AEFSZE2EFTANHES
FRzEERRBFRSG LERREER - MEESARDES

FHERE—X - AR REARFZABERMAL - Ao
AEEERBFAS LAA=D—EERFRERERRE
PWREELRRMTESTZALR  REZEEHUAZEZA

T2BE  RERERED
TERBHEELAE o

EHESGZRBTREDER

REBRE-Z-ZFA=ZTHIIFEAN TERERLZEHE
=

o

Z-TEXNA=ZTHLFER  REEESGHET2
HTEaEENESTS 2 R8E - ABRER - UK
B IFITER 2B

RBE-
WEHE
EN/NSIE S

I BERBHHEREEE




Cogorate Governance Report
ERERRE

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
accounts of the Company. As at 30 June 2010, the directors
are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Accordingly,
the directors have prepared the financial statements of the
Company on a going-concern basis.

The responsibilities of the external auditors about their financial
reporting are set out in the Independent Auditor's Report
attached to the Company’s Financial Statements for the year
ended 30 June 2010.

The Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of

the Group’s internal control system with an aim to safeguard
the shareholders’ investment and the Company’s assets in
compliance with the provisions of the Code. The purpose is
to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against
material misstaterments, errors, losses or fraud, and to manage
rather than eliminate risks of failure in achieving the Group’s
business objectives.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the year ended 30 June 2010, the fee for the Company’s

external auditors for audit services was HK$2,168,000 (2009:
HK$2,339,000) and that for non-audit services mainly relating
to taxation matters and other services was HK$165,000 (2009:
HK$693,000).

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has 5 members, comprising Ms. Miranda
HO Mo Han, Mr. Frank BLEACKLEY and Prof. Julia TSUEI

Jo (independent non-executive directors); and Mr. Leo KAN
Kin Leung and Mr. Paul Michael James KIRBY (non-executive
directors). The Chairperson of this Committee is Ms. Miranda
HO Mo Han.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee follow the
guidelines set out in the Code and it is responsible for, among
other things, reviewing the Group’s financial information and its
financial reporting and internal control system.

During the year ended 30 June 2010, the Audit Committee
held 2 meetings and work performed includes reviewing the
Group’s interim and annual results as well as its internal control
system. All members attended these meetings.
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Deloitte.
=)

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF KANTONE HOLDINGS
LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Kantone Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 27

to 88, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 30 June 2010, and the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

This responsibility includes designing, implementing and
maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY - continued

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant
to the entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of
the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 30 June
2010 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

19 October 2010
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
SEETERERK

For The Year Ended 30 June 2010 HE—Z—ZTF,~A=1HILFE

2010 2009
—E-ZF ZEENF
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’'000
FfaE FET FAT
Turnover e 6 1,289,616 1,299,684
Cost of sales FHERK A (982,529) (903,496)
Gross profit EH4a%E 307,087 396,188
Other income E AU A 7 6,492 8,718
Distribution costs 7 $HPK AN (39,455) (42,300)
General and administrative expenses —MRAITERZ (107,624) (92,255)
Impairment losses recognised for SRR SR EFER
available-for-sale investments ZBEEE 17 - (56,014)
Impairment losses recognised for TR A 2 FE
development costs for systems BAFTHERR 2 RE
and networks &8 14 = (100,425)
Impairment losses recognised for deposits iR e RIE KA
and prepaid development costs FriR 2 k(B g5 1E 18 (85,800) (40,560)
Finance costs BAFES AN 8 (470) (3,983)
Profit before taxation BRA A& A 9 80,230 69,369
Taxation I8 10 (121) (1,062)
Profit for the year INEE ST 80,109 68,307
Other comprehensive income: Hibh 2 mEUES ¢
Exchange difference arising on translation REBINETSFTEEE
of foreign operations ZIEHZ5E 5,001 15,352
Total comprehensive income for the year AEF MWL 85,110 83,659
Profit for the year attributable to: RO AFE &7
Owners of the Company RATER A 82,955 71,068
Non-controlling interests FEIRRR AR R A S (2,846) (2,761)
80,109 68,307
Total comprehensive income for the year ERAFEEH
attributable to: Was4agE -
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIEZZ =N 87,929 86,444
Non-controlling interests FEFERR AR R A S (2,819) (2,785)
85,110 83,659
Earnings per share — basic FRRAEF — EA 12 HK1.61 cents E{li  HK1.61 cents (L
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e B ARR R

At 30 June 2010 RZE—TFNA=1+H

2010 2009
—E—BF ZETNF
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
BtaE FE T FAT
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment mE - BB REE 13 39,471 34,835
Development costs for systems ESSWSE el
and networks (%N 14 1,272,570 1,094,033
Goodwill BE 15 36,795 36,795
Intangible assets | ERE 16 590 2,950
Available-for-sale investments A HHERE 17 - 95,084
Deposits and prepaid development costs e RIE KA 18 1,099,864 1,062,892
2,449,290 2,326,589
Current assets RENEE
Inventories ey 19 24,775 24,541
Trade and other receivables TEWE 5 R E hBEFR 20 457,294 505,545
Taxation recoverable AT Bl A5 I8 11 25
Deposits, bank balances and cash TR BITEBRERE 21 126,547 138,340
608,627 668,451
Current liabilities =R
Trade and other payables RSB 5 REMBRK 22 71,202 85,276
Warranty provision RER S 23 1,142 1,513
Taxation payable FEISFLIE 8 1,051
Bank loans — amount due within one year RITER—N—FRNDNE 24 18,183 3,043
Other borrowings — amount due within HEtEE
one year —R—FE R E|H 25 - 176
90,535 91,059
Net current assets mENEEFE 518,092 577,392
Total assets less current liabilities BEEBERRBAE 2,967,382 2,903,981
Non-current liabilities FEREBARE
Bank loans — amount due after one year IRITER N —F&EIE 24 29,050 37,026
Retirement benefit obligations IRRAE R AR 26 61,786 71,289
Deferred taxation IRIERTE 27 281 143
91,117 108,458
Net assets BEFE 2,876,265 2,795,523
Capital and reserves BRAEARGHE
Share capital k&N 28 523,421 514,212
Reserves s 2,349,517 2,275,165
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 22 &1#E5 A FE(L gz 2,872,938 2,789,377
Non-controlling interests JEPERS RS SR b2 3,327 6,146
2,876,265 2,795,523

The consolidated financial statements on pages 27 to 88 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on

19 October 2010 and are signed on its behalf by:

PAUL KAN MAN

LOK fif 3z 4

DIRECTOR £%
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For The Year Ended 30 June 2010 #HZE_—ZE—TFA=1HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mERAEREHR

TAAHREAER
Non-
Share Share  Dividend Translation Retained controlling
capital  premium reserve  reserve profits Total interests Total
FER
Bk RGOEE RERE ELRE  RERN fit  RRER &t
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000
FHx TERL TERL ThR TEx TERL TEL T
At 1 July 2008 R-EZNELA—-B 341106 530,749 5117 (14123 1,416,306 2,279,155 9500 2,288,655
Profit for the year FREF - - - - 71,068 71,068 2,761) 68,307
Exchange difference arising on R BN
translation of foreign operations FEECELER = - - 15,376 - 15376 (4 15352
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ FR2E Mz 258 - - - 15,376 71,068 86,444 (2,785) 83,659
On exercise of warrants ATiERMR R 14 99 - - - 113 - 113
Issue of shares as considerations R ERkE—fA
for acquisition of a subsidiary HEARZAE 62,000 266,600 - - - 328,600 - 328,600
Rights issue of shares LR 101,476 - - - - 101,476 - 101,476
Transaction costs attributable to HRAEEZR S
rights issue of shares BR = (2,667) - - - (2,667) - (2,667)
Acauisition of additional interest WERBAR
in a subsidiary FMER = = = = = = (669) (669)
Dividends for the year FRRE
~ underprovision ~BETR = = 930 - (930) - - -
~ Interim —E = - 10148 - ({0148 = = =
~ final —%H = = 7,713 N A4k = = =
Dividends paid BARE = = (8,744) = = (3,744) = (8,744)
Issue of shares as scrip dividend BIRGERIRRE 9,616 2835 (12,451) - - - - -
173,106 266,367 2,5% - (18,791) 423,778 (669) 423,209
At 30 June 2009 RZBBNFEAA=THE 514212 797,616 7,713 1,253 1,468,583 2,789,377 6,146 2,795,523
Profit for the year EREF = - - - 05 82055 (2846 80,109
Exchange difference arising on FRE IR
translation of foreign operations FESZELER - - - 4,974 - 4,974 27 5,001
Total comprehensive income for the year A2 E WS 4258 - - - 4,974 82,955 87,929 2,819 85,110
Dividends for the year ERRE
— interim —mH - - 10,357 = (10,357) = = =
—final —RH = - 10,468 - (10,468) - - -
Dividends paid BARE - - (49 = N R ) - 4369
Issue of shares as scrip dividend BIRIDEARRE 9,209 4,493 (13,702) - - - - -
9,009 4,493 2,755 - (0825  (4368) - 4369
At 30 June 2010 W-E-ZEXA=1tH 523421 802,109 10,468 6,227 1,530,713 2,872,938 3321 2,876,265
HBEEBRAR
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
mERERER

For The Year Ended 30 June 2010 HE—Z—ZTF~A=1HILFE

2010 2009
—E-ZF —ZTThEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FET
Cash flows from operating activities KEEBZHAEM
Profit before taxation BR A AT A 80,230 69,369
Adjustments for: FHEE
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, HEWE - BB KRE
plant and equipment 2 B (Es) 15 (33)
Discount on acquisition of additional UGB FI B A R)ESI
interest in a subsidiary W 2 YTk = (569)
Interest income B A (4,710) (5,938)
Interest on bank and other borrowings RITREMEBZFIE 470 3,983
Amortisation of development costs R s 2 FBERRAR
for systems and networks k3 371,310 321,725
Amortisation of intangible assets BB E 2 2,360 2,360
Depreciation of property, plant ME - BMENEREZ
and equipment e 7,608 7,187
Impairment losses recognised for Al B A PR
available-for-sale investments ZIR(EEE = 56,014
Impairment losses recognised for TR KR 2
development costs for systems AR 2 R(E
and networks &8 = 100,425
Impairment losses recognised for deposits IEE RIBA A
and prepaid development costs FrieEsR 2 BB 18 85,800 40,560
Operating cash flows before movements EERESFHR 2 LE
in working capital WER 543,083 595,088
Increase in inventories FEZEm (2,286) (4,607)
Decrease (increase) in trade and FEUE 5 R HAMBRF 2
other receivables A (3Ehn) 4,421 (126,819
Decrease in trade and other payables ERE 5 R EMBRTZ A (10,639) (4,773)
Decrease in warranty provision RERE 2R (217) (809)
Decrease in amount due to ultimate JE BRI A B ZRIE 2 >
holding company - (47)
Net cash generated from operations EEEA VIS TR 534,362 458,633
Taxation in other jurisdictions paid B E M B A @ 2 Fi TR (999) (1,661)
Net cash from operating activities KEREISFTS 2 e 35 533,363 456,872
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

FERERBK

For The Year Ended 30 June 2010

BE-_Z—F

FRA=THIFE

2010 2009
—ZT-TF ZEENF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FERT F&T
Cash flows from investing activities BEEH RSN
Deposits and prepayment paid in respect B RG MBLEFE
of development costs for systems KA Z B RE
and networks MIBFFRIE (672,594) (437,112)
Payments for development costs for ESWNE STk
systems and networks IP#NNEN = (189,230)
Additions to property, plant and equipment KRB - HE REE (14,749) (11,381)
Proceeds from disposal of available- HERHEEREZ
for-sale investments Fri85k18 85,122 -
Capital receipts from available- AMEHERERTRZ
for-sale investments BIR 47,355 75,699
Interest received BUHFE 4,710 5,988
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE « MR MEE
plant and equipment FriS 2 538 13 459
Net cash used in investing activities KREEBMFER 258 (550,143) (505,632)
Cash flows from financing activities REREZIBER
Proceeds from right issue of shares AP STRIE = 101,476
Transaction cost attributable to right HRFTEEZR 5
issue of shares &M = (2,667)
Cash receipts from exercise of warrants 1T{ERIAE R 2 IR WK = 113
New bank loans raised FTILIRITER 14,000 -
Dividends paid BERE (4,368) (3,744)
Interest paid EFE (470) (3,983)
Repayment of block discounting loans BEAXFITNER (176) (506)
Repayment of bank loans EBIRITER (3,486) (3,980)
Repayment of mortgage loan BEIRBER = @872)
Net cash from financing activities BB EHNE RS FEE 5,500 86,337
Net (decrease) increase in cash and RekReERZ )
cash equivalents HNFEE (11,280) 37,577
Cash and cash equivalents at FYRe RIREFRH
beginning of the year 138,340 105,896
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EREH) 2 72 (513) (5,133)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 454 MBS %58 126,547 138,340
Represented by: FE1G :
Deposits, bank balances and cash T RITHBRER S 126,547 138,340
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For The Year Ended 30 June 2010 HE—Z—ZTF~A=1HILFE

. GENERAL

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands

as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Law (Revised) Chapter 22 of the Cayman
Islands and its shares are listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). Its ultimate and immediate holding company
is Champion Technology Holdings Limited (“Champion”), a
company which was originally incorporated in the Cayman
Islands but subsequently re-domiciled to Bermuda, and
its shares are also listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. The addresses of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed
in the Corporate Information section of the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented

in Hong Kong dollar because the Company is a public
company with its shares listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange. The functional currency of the Company
is United States dollar.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 36.

. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has applied a number of
new and revised Hong Kong Accounting Standards (the
“HKAS”) and Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(the “HKFRSs”), amendments and interpretations
(collectively referred to as the “new and revised HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”).

Except as described below, the adoption of the new
and revised HKFRSs has had no material effect on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
current or prior accounting periods.

HKAS 1 (Revised 2007) Presentation of Financial
Statements

HKAS 1 (Revised 2007) has introduced terminology
changes (including revised titles for the consolidated
financial statements) and changes in the format and
content of the consolidated financial statements. The
application of the new and revised HKFRSs in the current
year has had no impact on the prior year reported amounts
in the primary statements. Therefore, the statement

of financial position as at the beginning of the earliest
comparative period is not presented.

Kantone Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE IR E M

For The Year Ended 30 June 2010 HE—Z—ZTF,NA=1HILFE

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments

HKFRS 8 is a disclosure standard that has resulted in a
redesignation of the Group’s reportable segments (see
note 6).

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised standards, amendments or interpretations that
have been issued but are not yet effective.

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs
2009

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs
2010°

HKAS 24 (Revised) Related party disclosures®

HKAS 32 (Amendment) Classification of right issues®

HKFRS 1 (Amendment) Additional exemptions for
first-time adopters?®

Limited exemption from
comparative HKFRS 7
disclosures for first-time
adopters*

Group cash-settled
share-based payment
transactions?

HKFRS 1 (Amendment)

HKFRS 2 (Amendment)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments’
HK(IFRIC*)-INT 14 Prepayments of a minimum
(Amendment) funding requirement®

HK(IFRIC)-INT 19 Extinguishing financial
liabilities with equity

instruments*

! Amendments that are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2010.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2010.

9 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 February
2010.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010.

£ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010
and 1 January 2011, as appropriate.

6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2011.

7 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2013.

IFRIC represents the International Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committee.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR SRR M

For The Year Ended 30 June 2010 #HE—Z—ZFNA=1+HILFE

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments introduces new
requirements for the classification and measurement of
financial assets and will be effective from the Group’s
annual reporting period beginning 1 July 2013, with
earlier application permitted. The Standard requires all
recognised financial assets that are within the scope

of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement to be measured at either amortised cost or
fair value. Specifically, debt investments that (i) are held
within a business model whose objective is to collect the
contractual cash flows and (i) have contractual cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal outstanding are generally measured at amortised
cost. All other debt investments and equity investments are
measured at fair value. The application of HKFRS 9 might
affect the classification and measurement of the Group’s
financial assets.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of the other new and revised standards,
amendments or interpretations will have no material impact
on the consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate

the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is
achieved where the Company has the power to govern the
financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain
benefits from its activities.

Kantone Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE IR E M

For The Year Ended 30 June 2010 HE—Z—ZTF,NA=1HILFE

Basis of consolidation — continued

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement

of comprehensive income from the effective date of
acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as
appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies in line with those used by other members of the
Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the equity of the owners of the Company.

Allocation of total comprehensive income to non-
controlling interests

Total comprehensive income and expense of a subsidiary
is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance. Prior to 1 July
2009, losses applicable to the non-controlling interests in
excess of the non-controlling interests in the subsidiary’s
equity were allocated against the interests of the Group
except to the extent that the non-controlling interests had
a binding obligation and were able to make an additional
investment to cover the losses.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries prior to 1 July 2009

Increases in interests in existing subsidiaries were treated
in the same manner as the acquisition of subsidiaries, with
goodwill or a bargain purchase gain being recognised
where appropriate. For decreases in interests in
subsidiaries regardless of whether the disposals would
result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries,
the difference between the consideration received and the
adjustment to non-controlling interests was recognised in
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

wRE IR E M

For The Year Ended 30 June 2010 #HE_-_ZT—Z4F

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries — continued

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries on or after 1 July 2009

Changes in the Group’s ownership interest in a subsidiary

that do not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiary are accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amounts of the Group’s interests and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes

NRA=THRIEFE

FEEMRREWB AR ZRERER 2 B8 - 2

R-FFNFEA—AXZEFEEFREFHE L I
FEERE

REENIE A RHEA RS B3 (U N EBAREE K
K ULHIE AR 2 IR BOIERERR 5 - AEE 2
NFER A R i s 2 BREE N TR - AR EN %
MEARZ RS EE - SFERRRES 2 KHER
BUEDNHCURREBZAFEEZMEAZRE  HEE

in their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference RIERRPERWEBR AR ZHEGA
between the amount by which the non-controlling interests

are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or

received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to

owners of the Company.

Goodwill e

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried i B SE TS P EE AE 7 P R IR K AN R a] 2 =1 RE B 1R |
at cost less any accumulated impairment losses and is B - WS B BARR KT BILZ7 -

presented separately in the consolidated statement of

financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill arising RERRMS - WEATEL ZEE NS LR S TEH
from an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant Al ZERIK ﬁﬁﬁﬁ? 42 BRI E 2 AR IR B A sk — 4R
cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating BN - EOREEBZBRENBEFETRENSR
units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of 4T =] Eﬁgﬁuﬁﬁj%ﬁfﬁ,ﬁkﬁ R ITRE RIS o SRR E
the acquisition. A cash-generating unit to which goodwill B REEZWBREEZREMNS  BEolkmEzg
has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, BN Z I E B e RETTRE R o (W& IR EAL
and whenever there is an indication that the unit may 2Ol EoeEIRZEMNZERE  BIREBBLESER
be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a ERBAEHEREE  ERRZEMNASEEER
financial year, the cash-generating unit to which goodwill HEZLHDREZEMN 2 EMEE - B8 2 ERRIE
has been allocated is tested for impairment before the end BREDTEENERANER AR ZREEENHEZ M
of that financial year. When the recoverable amount of the NFHEME o

cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount of the

unit, the impairment loss is allocated to reduce the carrying

amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit first, and then

to the other assets of the unit pro rata on the basis of the

carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment

loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss. An

impairment loss for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent

periods.

i ERERREN  FFEHERESERGTADE
RERZEBZEEEE

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating units, the
attributable amount of goodwill capitalised is included
in the determination of the amount of profit or loss on
disposal.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

wRE IR E M

For The Year Ended 30 June 2010 HE—Z—ZTF,NA=1HILFE

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods sold and services provided in the normal course
of business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when goods
are delivered and title has passed.

Service income is recognised when the services are
rendered.

Income from licensing is recognised when the relevant
licensing agreements are formally concluded.

Guaranteed distribution income from certain available-
for-sale investments where the Group is contracted to
receive a pre-determined minimum sum over the period
of the projects is allocated to accounting periods so as to
reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the investment
in these available-for-sale investments. Income from
other available-for-sale investments are recognised when
the Group’s right to receive the distributions has been
established.

Rental income, including rental invoiced in advance from
assets under operating leases, is recognised on a straight-
line basis over the relevant lease term.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and
at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including land and buildings
held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services, or for administrative purposes are stated at

cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

wRE IR E M

For The Year Ended 30 June 2010 #E—Z—ZFNA=1HILFE

Property, plant and equipment — continued
Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method, at the following rates
per annum:

% BERRE-#A
ME - BERREEE 2R ANELERETE - REML
SRR T UM - SFFZIERMT

Freehold land Nil KA i

Leasehold land and buildings ~ Over the shorter of the REKHFH 2 i BRARAZ
remaining unexpired KigF FHEK 50 4F -
terms of the relevant ARG & R

leases or 50 years
Plant and machinery and 10% — 50%
telecommunications

networks

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is
included in profit or loss in the period in which the item is
derecognised.

Owner-occupied leasehold interest in land

The land and buildings elements of a lease of land and
buildings are considered separately for the purposes of
lease classification, unless the lease payments cannot be
allocated reliably between the land and buildings elements,
in which case, the entire lease is generally treated as a
finance lease.

Impairment (other than goodwill, development costs
for systems and networks and financial assets)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews

the carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered

an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. If the
recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss
is recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE IR E M

For The Year Ended 30 June 2010 HE—Z—ZTF,~A=1HILFE

Intangible assets

On initial recognition, intangible assets acquired separately
and from business combinations are recognised at cost
and at fair value at the acquisition date respectively. After
initial recognition, intangible assets with finite useful lives
are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for
intangible assets with finite useful lives is provided on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured at the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and are recognised in profit or loss in the period when the
asset is derecognised.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to enter
into an operating lease are recognised as a reduction of
rental expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Deposits and prepaid development costs

Deposits and prepaid development costs represent the
development costs for systems and networks projects
under construction. Deposits and prepaid development
costs are transferred to development costs for systems
and networks when it is implemented for its intended use.
Deposits and prepaid development costs are stated at
cost less subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

Research and development expenditures

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.
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For The Year Ended 30 June 2010 #HE—Z—ZFNA=1+HILFE

Development costs for systems and networks
Development costs for systems and networks are stated
at cost less subsequent accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses.

Development costs for systems and networks represent
all direct costs incurred by the Group in setting up
systems and networks, including the cost of equipment,
development cost and subcontracting expenditure. Such
assets are recognised only if all of the following conditions
are met:

— the technical feasibility of completing the asset so that
it will be available for use or sale;

— the intention to complete the asset and use or sell it;
— the ability to use or sell the asset;

— how the asset will generate probable future economic
benefits. Among other things, the entity can
demonstrate the existence of a market for the output
of the asset or the asset itself or, if it is to be used
internally, the usefulness of the asset;

— the availability of adequate technical, financial and
other resources to complete the development and to
use or sell the asset; and

— the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
attributable to the asset during its development.

Development costs that do not fulfil the above conditions
are recognised as expenses in the period in which it is
incurred. Development costs for systems and networks
which are implemented for its intended use and fulfil the
above conditions are amortised on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives, subject to a maximum of
five years. Where the recoverable amount of development
costs for systems and networks has declined below

their carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced

to reflect the decline in value. Where an impairment loss
subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, so that the increased carrying amount does

not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately.

Kantone Holdings Limited
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For The Year Ended 30 June 2010 HE—Z—ZTF,NA=1HILFE

Development costs for systems and networks —
continued

An item of development costs for systems and networks is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of
the asset. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of

the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is
included in profit or loss in the period in which the item is
derecognised.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities
are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs

that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are mainly classified into one
of the two categories, including loans and receivables and
available-for-sale financial assets. The accounting policies
adopted in respect of each category of financial assets are
set out below.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis
for debt instruments.
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For The Year Ended 30 June 2010 #E—Z—ZFNA=1HILFE

Financial instruments — continued EWMIBE-Z
Financial assets — continued THEE-F
Loans and receivables B REKSIE

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans
and receivables (including trade and other receivables,
deposits, bank balances and cash) are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
any identified impairment losses (see accounting policy on
impairment of financial assets below).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that
are either designated or not classified as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables or
held-to-maturity investments.

For available-for-sale debt investments with guaranteed
return, payments receivables each year for investments
are apportioned between income and reduction of the
carrying value of the investments so as to reflect a constant
periodic rate of return. Subsequent to initial recognition,
available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair
value. Changes in fair value are recognised in equity,
until the financial asset is disposed of or is determined to
be impaired, at which time, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in equity is removed from equity
and recognised in profit or loss (see accounting policy on
impairment of financial assets below).

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have
a quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured, they are measured at
cost less any identified impairment losses at the end of the
reporting period (see accounting policy on impairment of
financial assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment
at the end of the reporting period. Financial assets are
impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a
result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash
flows of the financial assets have been affected.

For loans and receivables, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

Kantone Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2010

42

B R N MR IR FE 3 SE O B T 5 SR B 1 A A B E 3 AT
EENRZIENTESBEE - RYGERRER LB
FE(BHEERE S MEMERR - 75K RITEH LR
&) T E R B ZE 2 B ¥ $H 2 AR B EA 2
AMZREEEIIR(FHESREERBEZSFTERELT
X) e

AR & 2

Y ESREEREERARIL S EREAFEE
ANBHZEREE  ERNREUERIFTEEIHMRE
ZIPTET A -

ARFBOH 2 AIHHEEHREFF 2IRERIFIR
WA E 7 REEREZ RO - ARMEEZE
HEHE - RYATHERR - IHEESREERATE
BEftE - RFEEZEPINERRER  EESREER
HEXEESCRERL - B BERNERER 2R
AHERMEEEDEE  YNERTHER (R TXERR
MEEREZ GEEK) -

EREE RIS AR T E B AT EERER ST
EZAIHHERAERE - AIRHRE B IZR AR A
ERERMN2BREBRTE (R TXAHEREEREL
SRR -

EREEZBIE
ERMEESNHRENCARTHASHERETR - 2
ERBRBERTEREEZRPRKR SR - HIHEHE
RIEMBELE 2 —ARZREMHMZ B ZEE - EHZ
CREERRNE °

SEFREWERM S - BUEZZEREEE

o BITAERZETHBEAMBINEE 3



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For The Year Ended 30 June 2010 HE—Z—ZTF,~A=1HILFE

Financial instruments — continued

Impairment of financial assets — continued

e default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments; or

e itis becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are subsequently assessed for impairment on
a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for
a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments and an increase in the
number of delayed payments.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an
impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when there
is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent
periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in

a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively

to an event occurring after the impairment losses was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss

is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.

For available-for-sale debt investments, impairment
losses are subsequently reversed through profit or loss
if an increase in the fair value of the investment can

be objectively related to an event occurring after the
recognition of the impairment loss.
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For The Year Ended 30 June 2010 #HE_-_ZT—Z4F

Financial instruments — continued

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified according to the substance
of the contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting
all of its liabilities.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to
the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables and
bank and other borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at
the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial
assets are transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled
or expires. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid or payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Kantone Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2010

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR ISR E M

44

NA=THRIEFE

SRIAE-&

LHEERES
SEERETZEMABREST A  REBMFINELH

TR BEANRECHEBERESTA Y TENHE -

Rt I/E\?EE?D%&/\%’JZF)T%EJ BRAEEEESHK
ReptgE 2 (TAA

ST
MR oA B R 2 RS R R
PRB 2 5% - BRI IR A TR 3t B
EREMRZEMAB B EAFE - JEEFH (0
) BRI 2 Tl -

B RS TR BRI R B ERER

EHAE
TRABEEFENES REMER  RITREMER
TEBRER BB R EABHR AT E -

#m T A
RNRAFET2EE T RATIZEFHIR (O B EITHK
)N
SRR TERR

ENRBEERBRSRENERE  AeREECEER
MAKREEAREE SMEEZMARMAMEZ280E
B mRi% - eMEERZASREE - — BREE

R—ETHEE  ZEERAEEEREERRENE
ERAEEMEERETHRARBRETME 2R
FERER TR o

BEEMANTREZEBRER  BUEREIHE - 28R
EREMEE FERERZHABEZREEREENK
ENREZMEZ ZRSERETER -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For The Year Ended 30 June 2010 #HZE_-ZT—

Provision

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable
that the Group will be required to settle that obligation.
Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at
the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where
a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated
to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows (where the effect is
material).

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-
out method.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
because it excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes
items that are never taxable and deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.
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For The Year Ended 30 June 2010 #HE_-_ZT—Z4F

Taxation — continued

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities

in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation

of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable

that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal

of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed

at the end of the reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the

tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in

which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based
on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities. Deferred tax is recognised in profit
or loss, except when it relates to items that are recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case the deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
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For The Year Ended 30 June 2010 HE—Z—ZTF,NA=1HILFE

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recorded in its functional currency (i.e. the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of the reporting period, and their
income and expenses are translated at the average
exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case, the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are
used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
(the translation reserve).

Retirement benefit cost

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit
schemes are charged as an expense when employees
have rendered service entitling them to contributions.

For the Group’s defined benefit retirement benefit scheme,
the cost of providing benefits is determined using the
projected unit credit method, with actuarial valuation being
carried out every three years and updated annually at the
end of the reporting period. Actuarial gains and losses
which exceed 10% of the greater of the present value of
the Group’s defined benefit obligations and the fair value
of scheme assets at the end of the previous reporting
period are amortised over the expected average remaining
working lives of the participating employees. Past service
cost is recognised immediately to the extent that the
benefits are already vested, and otherwise is amortised
on a straight-line basis over the average period until the
amended benefits become vested.
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For The Year Ended 30 June 2010 #E—Z—ZFNA=1HILFE

Retirement benefit cost - continued

The amount recognised in the consolidated statement

of financial position represents the present value of the
defined benefit obligation as adjusted for unrecognised
actuarial gains and losses and unrecognised past service
cost, and as reduced by the fair value of scheme assets.
Any assets resulting from this calculation is limited to
unrecognised actuarial losses and past service cost, plus
the present value of available refunds and reductions in
future contribution to the scheme.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Estimated impairment of trade receivables and
guaranteed distribution receivables

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss, the
Group takes into consideration the estimation of future
cash flows. The amount of impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition). Where the actual future cash flows

are less than expected, a material impairment loss may
arise. As at 30 June 2010, the carrying amounts of trade
receivables and guaranteed distribution receivables are
HK$331,412,000 (2009: HK$339,130,000) and nil (2009:
HK$44,838,000) respectively.

Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units
to which goodwill has been allocated. The value in use
calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value. Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, a material impairment loss may arise. As at 30
June 2010 and 2009, the carrying amount of goodwill

is HK$36,795,000. Details of the recoverable amount
calculation are disclosed in note 15.
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For The Year Ended 30 June 2010 HE—Z—ZTF,~A=1HILFE

Development costs for systems and networks and

deposits and prepaid development costs

(1) Estimated useful life
The estimated useful life of the assets reflects the
directors’ estimate of the periods that the Group intends
to derive future economic benefits from the use of the
development. Where the actual useful life is less than
expected, a material impairment loss may arise.

(2) Estimated impairment
Determining whether development costs for systems
and networks, and deposits and prepaid development
costs are impaired requires an estimation of the value
in use on a project-by-project basis. The value in use
calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash
flow expected to arise from the continuing use of the
assets and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value. In the event that the developers fail
to perform their obligations to develop the technologies
as required, the Group will estimate the future cash
flows from recovering the deposits and prepaid
development costs from developers. Where the actual
future cash flows are less than expected, a material
impairment loss may arise. As at 30 June 2010, the
carrying amounts of development costs for systems and
networks and deposits and prepaid development costs
were HK$1,272,570,000 (2009: HK$1,094,033,000)
and HK$1,099,864,000 (2009: HK$1,062,892,000)
respectively.

Estimated impairment of available-for-sale
investments

Determining whether available-for-sale investments are
impaired requires an estimation of future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return of similar
assets and the assessment of the ability for repayment by
the investees. Where the actual future cash flows are less
than expected, a material impairment loss may arise. As
at 30 June 2009, the carrying amount of available-for-sale
investments was HK$95,084,000.

RN A2 B R A RE S R AN BAA

(1) 15&t AT AFH
BE G A ERFHRRES T AKER] A A
FEIH B BEARRREN G2 FH - fWErEREH
RIEHRE - BT ELAENRERE

@) 1EErRE
EBERGRAS 2 ABKAREZS RIEMFEZEK AR
EEAFERE  BRSEB ZFEREABAEL M -
ATEFEABEN  AEEAEGTEREEREER
FEHELEZRARBSRAABZ AR ERTERME -
HAZEEREBITHRSERAERRZER  AIASE
B st FAEE K E 2 Ee RIEMNREKAZ
REBF ST - MEBEBRRRRSHRONRES - A7
EEELEAREEE - R_ZE—ZTF A=
B RS\ RB% 2 EEKARZS RIEMFAZRA
ZEREEDRIAE1,272,570,0008 L ( — BT A F ¢
1,094,033,0007% 7T ) & 1,099,864,000/8 7. (ZEZE h,
£ 1 1,062,892,000787T) °

A ERE 2 fhEHRE

EEAHEOERESTREAMGI AR ZRER - Wik
BLUBERRMSEREER M HREHR ZERRE
7o MERARRSRONIES - I ELEEARE
EiE - RZTETNFAA=1TAH - AIHEEREZERR
{B7%%95,084,000 87T °

Categories of financial instruments SRTEER
2010 2009
—E-ZF ZETNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT FHAIT
Financial assets SRVEE
Available-for-sale investments A EIRE - 95,084
Loans and receivables (including ERMEBERR (BT
deposits with financial institutions, R BiIE 2 F 5K
bank balances and cash) IBITEBRKES) 583,841 643,885
583,841 738,969
Financial liabilities SRBE
Amortised cost [BE: 3D PN 118,435 125,521
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For The Year Ended 30 June 2010 #HE_-_ZT—Z4F

Financial risk management objectives and policies
The Group’s major financial instruments include available-
for-sale investments, trade and other receivables,
deposits, bank balances and cash, trade and other
payables, bank and other borrowings. Details of these
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The
risks associated with these financial instruments and the
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.

Credit risk

As at 30 June 2010, the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due
to failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties
is arising from the carrying amount of the respective
recognised financial assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

In addition, the Group is exposed to credit risk on

its deposits and prepaid development costs paid to
developers, in the event that these developers fail to
perform their obligations to develop the technologies

as required. The maximum exposure to credit risk in

this regard, is the carrying amount of the deposits and
prepaid development costs as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk in relation to trade
receivables, the management of the Group will only allow
customers with good credit history to pay on credit.

In addition, the management reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual trade debt at the end of the
reporting period, taking into account of future discounted
cash flows, to ensure that adequate impairment losses
are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
directors of the Company consider that the Group’s credit
risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on trade receivables is concentrated on

a few distributors. Receivables from top five distributors
represented approximately 87% (2009: 79%) of trade
receivables at the end of the reporting period. In addition,
the credit risk on guaranteed distribution receivables

is also concentrated on a few number of guarantors of
investments. The management considers that there are
no significant credit risks due to the long and good credit
history of these debtors.
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For The Year Ended 30 June 2010 HE—Z—ZTF,NA=1HILFE

Financial risk management objectives and policies —
continued

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents
deemed adequate by the management to finance the
Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations
in cash flows. The management monitors the utilisation of
borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities based on the
agreed repayment terms. The table has been drawn up
based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay. The table includes both interest and
principal cash flows.

To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount of interest payment is estimated
based on the interest rate at the end of the reporting
period.

B EEEE B ERBR-Z

MEELmEE

PRBESRREEMS  AREETRERRS RS
CEREERERRAM KT  UMEAREBEZEZ
RIRERESREBAERFZE - ERETRERE
BOKF R HER EL 8 ST AR R S RUAK

TRANAEE 2 BB ERABEEEERZRGBE
HWER - JIRDEAEEREAIREREEZERBEE
REBRBRIER o TREEMNERASHWELIR

RIFBNRAE 2 F ST RIE IS BT/ 2 M R {5t
REEBNBIRERE

Total Carrying
Contractual 0-6 7-12 Over undiscounted amount at
interest rates months months 1 year cash flows 30 June 2010
R=B-ZF
FERRE ~A=TH
EEES ZZ6fdA TZ12{8A g RESE ZIRE{E
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER ThRT ThRL ThRL TERL

2010 —2-%2f%
Trade and other payables ERE S REMERR - 71,202 - - 71,202 71,202
Bank borrowings RITER 15 16,129 2,118 30,200 48,447 47,233
87,331 2,118 30,200 119,649 118,435
Total Camying
Contractual 0-6 7-12 Over  undiscounted amount at
interest rates months months 1 year cashflows 30 June 2009
RZZTNE
RUFR ~NA=TR
AR TZ6/EA 7E12{8A B1E nEEH ZEHE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL THL THL THEL THEL

2009 “ZTNE
Trade and other payables ERE S REMERR - 85,276 - - 85,276 85,276
Bank borrowings FITEE 46 2,159 2,147 38,165 42471 40,069
Other borrowings EtofaE 90 184 = = 184 176
87,619 2,147 38,165 127,931 125,521

The amounts included above for variable interest rate
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities are subject
to change if changes in variable interest rates differ to those
estimates of interest rates determined at the end of the
reporting period.

i 3% B R AR P S B e A RS B E 2 MR k5t Bt
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Financial risk management objectives and policies —
continued

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk

in relation to variable-rate bank deposits, bank and

other borrowings. The Group does not enter into any
arrangement to hedge cash flow interest rate risk.
However, the management monitors interest rate
exposure and will consider hedging significant interest rate
risk should the need arises.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates for variable-rate deposits,
bank balances, bank and other borrowings at the end of
the reporting period. The analysis is prepared assuming
the balances outstanding at the end of the reporting period
were outstanding for the whole year. A 10 basis points
(2009: 50 basis points) increase or decrease represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 10 basis points (2009: 50 basis
points) higher or lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s profit for the year ended 30 June
2010 would increase or decrease by approximately
HK$77,000 (2009: increase or decrease by HK$490,000).

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent interest rate risk as the
year end exposure does not reflect the exposure during the
year.

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that movement

in foreign currency exchange rate which will affect the
Group’s financial results and its cash flows. Certain trade
receivables and deposits and bank balances of the Group
and intra-group current accounts are denominated in
foreign currencies. The Group does not engage in any
foreign currency hedging instruments. It is the Group’s
policy to manage foreign exchange risk through matching
foreign currency income with expense, and where
exposure to foreign exchange is anticipated, appropriate
hedging instruments will be used.

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and liabilities, which expose
the Group to foreign currency risk.
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Financial risk management objectives and policies —
continued

Foreign currency risk — continued

The carrying amounts of the group entities’ foreign
currency denominated monetary assets and monetary
liabilities (including intra-group current accounts) at the
reporting date are as follows:

B ESEE B ERBR-&

S mpE -AE
AEBRERMNETHEZ EREERERAB(BEE
EAKEARRZERS Q) NE B2 BREEDT

2010 2009

—E-ZF —TTNF
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
BE 8f& BE af&
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FHET FAT FAT
Euro BT 1,886 771 2,946 744
Pound Sterling 7 701 - 69 =
Macao Pataca SEFIT 366 17 352 66

Sensitivity analysis HREE T

The group entities are mainly exposed to foreign currency
risk in Euro.

The following table details the group entities’ sensitivity to a
5% (2009: 5%) increase and decrease in Euro against each
group entity’s functional currency. 5% (2009: 5% is the
sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency risk
internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis
includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items and adjusts their translation at the year
end for a 5% (2009: 5%) change in foreign currency
rates. A positive number below indicates an increase in
profit where Euro strengthen 5% (2009: 5%) against each
group entity’s functional currency. For a 5% (2009: 5%)
weakening of Euro against each group entity’s functional
currency, there would be an equal and opposite impact on
the profit.

AEE TR ZHREZINERRKERT -

TREEHAEEE RSN S EE R
ZEE FARTE% (ZETNF | 5%) 2 BEE - 5%
(ZBBAE 5 5%) D AENHAEEEEABREIE
AREFRANKREL R - RN KSR BEINEER
AR BBITLE - BUBE HITEBIEUSNEEHE
RENEHEE - WENEERBE% (—TTAF
5%) HHE MR MM B E I 5% o AT EERABTH
& EEEBN L EEAEEYS (CBBAF 5%) BRFZ

Euro BT

A MBI S EE BB EERES% (ZTEN
F 1 5%)  BSEEFIEKARRE Z AR -

2010 2009

—E-ZF —TTNF

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FTHET FHIT

56 110

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk as
the year end exposure does not reflect the exposure during
the year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR ISR E M

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on discounted cash flows analysis.

The directors consider the carrying amounts of financial
assets and liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements approximate their fair
values.

Fair value measurements recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position

No financial instruments are remeasured at fair value at the
end of the reporting period.

(a) Turnover
Turnover represents the net amounts received and
receivable for goods sold and services provided
by the Group to outside customers, licensing fees
received and receivable and distributions/dividends
received and receivable from the Group’s investments
in e-commerce projects and strategic investments
during the year.

The turnover of the Group comprises the following:

NA=THRIEFE

TREEREREEZATER
CREENSBABZATEE  REBRMEER
X REURBSRONTEE -

EEARBBAENANGENBREINRZEREER
BERmEEEEAFEERS -

RS BN RZRAERZ L FEEE

MR ERTERT RSB T EARFEBESEHE -

(a) EX&E
EEBEIRTFARERRIINTBER L EE R RIRERS
2B R ERIEFE DU USRI

MEAASEE TRHBEE 2 HEARFEEREZE
WK FEd DR, B, e

AEBz EXERETHIRIE

2010 2009

—E-EF —TENF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAET

Sales of systems products HE RS Em 745,499 714,182
Rendering of services and TR AR TS S B R R

software licensing 518,962 549,165

Leasing of systems products HERSED 22,247 21,193

Guaranteed distribution income RS IRBA 2,908 15,144

1,289,616 1,299,684

(b) Segment information
The Group has adopted HKFRS 8 Operating
Segments with effect from 1 July 2009. HKFRS 8 is a
disclosure standard that requires operating segments
to be identified on the basis of internal reports
about components of the Group that are regularly
reviewed by the chief operating decision maker (the
“CODM”), which is a group of executive directors of
the Company, for the purpose of allocating resources
to segments and assessing their performance. In
contrast, the predecessor standard (HKAS 14,
Segment Reporting) required an entity to identify two
sets of segments (business and geographical) using a
risks and returns approach. In the past, the Group’s
primary reporting format was business segments.
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For The Year Ended 30 June 2010 HE—Z—ZTF,~A=1HILFE

(b) Segment information — continued

In prior years, primary segment information reported
externally was analysed on the basis of the types

of goods supplied and services provided by the
Group’s operating divisions (i.e. sales of general
systems products, provision of services and software
licensing, leasing of systems products, investments
in e-commerce projects and strategic investments).
However, information reported to the CODM is
analysed by systems sales and licensing, leasing of
systems products, and strategic investments for the
purpose of resources allocation and performance
assessment. Financial information in relation to

the provision of services and software licensing

and investments in e-commerce projects is not
separately reported but included in “systems sales
and licensing” and “strategic investments” respectively
under HKFRS 8 consistent with how the CODM
assesses performance and allocates resources. The
redesignation of the Group’s reportable segment
under HKFRS 8 has no material impact on the results
reported in the current and prior years.

Three reportable segments are identified as follows:

includes income from
sales of systems
products, software
licensing and
customisation, and
provision of related
services

includes income from

e Systems sales -
and licensing

e |easing of -

systems leasing of systems
products products

e Strategic - includes income from
investments investments

The accounting policies of the reportable segments
are the same as the Group’s accounting policies
described in note 3. Segment results represent

the profit before taxation earned by each segment,
excluding interest income, finance costs, unallocated
corporate income and expenses such as central
administration costs and directors’ salaries. This is
the measure reported to the CODM for the purpose
of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance.
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For The Year Ended 30 June 2010 #E—Z—ZFNA=1HILFE

(b) Segment information — continued
Information regarding the above segments is reported
below. Amounts reported for the prior year have been
restated to conform to the requirements of HKFRS 8.

(b) 2EER-
BWLAA R AHSENT - MEW2 LEESH
BAEBFIATA BAR RS LS 8 H 2T -

Systems
sales and Leasing of
licensing systems Strategic
RIGEHE products investments Consolidated
kiEHE HERFESR REEMRE wE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FExT FExT FET
Year ended 30 June 2010 BE-_Z-ZF
NA=ZTHLEEE
TURNOVER e
External and total revenue HHINEE KRB 1,264,461 22,247 2,908 1,289,616
RESULTS EST
Segment result IR 96,101 864 1,404 98,369
Interest income FIBUA 4,710
Finance costs BTSN (470)
Unallocated corporate ROBEARIFAX
expenses, net — 55 (22,379)
Profit before taxation BT Al A 80,230
Year ended 30 June 2009 HE_ZTTNF
ANA=ZTHLESFE
TURNOVER k]
External and total revenue HIMEE RAAKA 1,263,347 21,193 15,144 1,299,684
RESULTS E
Segment result SRS 117,963 2,605 (41,663) 78,905
Interest income M EUA 5,933
Finance costs B RSP AN (3,983)
Unallocated corporate RAOMARIFAEZ
expenses, net — R (11,486)
Profit before taxation BR A% A& A 69,369
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(b) Segment information — continued (b) DEER-&

Systems Leasing of

sales and systems Strategic
licensing products investments Consolidated
RHE HERS
RS Em KEMERE wE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FExT FET FET
Year ended 30 June 2010 BE—ZT—25%
NE=THLEFE
Amounts included in the RARErED 5T
measure of segment profit BB ¢
or loss:
Depreciation and amortisation 7 K ## £ 380,541 737 - 381,278
Impairment losses recognised ~ BtikE & IE(SFIEE
for deposits and prepaid AR Z
development costs BB ETIE 85,800 - - 85,800
Loss on disposal of property,  HEME « BE &
plant and equipment B 5ti=| 15 - - 15
Year ended 30 June 2009 HEZZTTNF
ANA=ZTHLESFE
Amounts included in the RARErE0 iR T
measure of segment profit B 5= Pdent: i
or loss:
Depreciation and amortisation ~ #7%& f # 4 330,974 298 - 331,272
Impairment loss recognised for  Ht Al 4 & 1% & FTHER
available-for-sale ZBEEE
investments = = 56,014 56,014
Impairment loss recognised RGN 2 FE
for development costs for AT ER
systems and networks ZREEE 100,425 - - 100,425
Impairment losses recognised iz & K& IBRIZE
for deposits and prepaid FRAFRERZ
development costs A ETIE 40,560 = = 40,560
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE - HEK&
plant and equipment Btz e (31) @) = (33)
No assets and liabilities are included in the measure of AR ETERERARERAREERABELETHE
segment reporting as they are not regularly reviewed B R ABEMAARTEDERENA

by the CODM.
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For The Year Ended 30 June 2010 #E—Z—ZFNA=1HILFE

(c) Geographical information

The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s

(c) HEEH

revenue and non-current assets by location of IERBNEE 2 D ITEIIR T :
customers and by location of assets respectively:

AEE D HRE P e R B EIE BB DA R

Revenue Non-current assets
['ON FERBEE
Year ended 30 June At 30 June
BEAA=THLEE MRA<A=+H
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-EF —ZTTNF —E-2F ZETNF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHT THET FAT
People’s Republic of China FREE A R AN
(the “PRC”), including ([#E]) -
Hong Kong and Macau BREESRIRM 832,124 836,269 2,411,988 2,199,100
Europe (mainly United BOM (EZ AT
Kingdom and Germany) Ko=) 363,959 354,233 34,854 30,173
Others Eith 93,533 109,182 2,448 2,232

1,289,616 1,299,684 2,449,290

2,231,505

Note: Non-current assets exclude thi
sale investments.

Included in other income is interest earned on bank

e Group’s available-for- WisE - SERBEETRIEAEE ZAMEHERE -

deposits and balances of HK$4,710,000 (2009: TL(ZZFZTNAF ¢ 5,933,000/87T) °

HK$5,933,000).

E A WA BIRIRIT RS R AAERFTIREZ 7.8 4,710,000 78

2010 2009
—E-EF —EThF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET T
Interest on bank and other borrowings AR =FABREE ZRIT
wholly repayable within three years REMEEZFE 470 3,983

Kantone Holdings Limited
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For The Year Ended 30 June 2010 HE—Z—ZTF,~A=1HILFE

2010 2009
—E-ZF ZETNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Profit before taxation has been arrived at BB 2 0K -
after charging:
Directors’ remuneration (Note) EEME (M) 3,431 1,076
Staff costs NN 92,024 89,135
Retirement benefit scheme contributions R RAEFIFHEI LK
other than directors (Z=ERRIM) 7,806 5,917
Total staff costs B TR AN 4B %8 103,261 96,128
Amortisation on: AR %18 2 84
Development costs for systems and R R B4k 2 FIEERAR
networks, included in cost of sales (FFASHEKARA) 371,310 321,725
Intangible assets, included in general | EEGTA—MR
and administrative expenses T HA) 2,360 2,360
Depreciation of property, plant and Y% BEREEITE
equipment, included in general and GIA—RRITEE HA)
administrative expenses 7,608 7,187
Total depreciation and amortisation e R BER 381,278 331,272
Auditor’s remuneration ZEEB £ 2,168 2,339
Cost of inventories recognised as expense TR A H 2 1FE R 591,935 563,403
Loss on disposal of property, plant and LEYIZ - BEREE
equipment 28 15 =
Minimum lease payments paid under RRBRLEHEE N2
operating leases in respect of: HEEENHERLRE :
Rented premises HEWE 2,901 2,751
Motor vehicles a8 4,227 3,955
Net foreign exchange loss ME NS 518 F /R - 471
Research and development costs B S iE I R R B A AR
expensed 12,896 5,468
and after crediting: REETA :
Discount on acquisition of additional UM B A R B ME
interests in a subsidiary TR - 569
Net foreign exchange gain b 5 e 5 58 849 -
Gain on disposal of property, plant HEME - BE R&E
and equipment 2 Was - 33
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For The Year Ended 30 June 2010 #E—Z—ZFNA=1HILFE

Note: Bz -
Information regarding directors’ and employees’ FHEEHESEHE2ER
emoluments
Directors B
Year ended 30 June 2010 BE-_Z-ZEXA=1THLEE
Performance Retirement
Salaries related benefit Total
and other incentive scheme directors’
Fees benefits payments contributions emoluments
#Hek RIERR BREF EEHS
ik Hitpgdl BHzRE sHEIR Eat ol
HK$’00 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FTERT FTERT TERT FTERT FTERT
(Note)
(BE)
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Paul Kan Man Lok HpE it - 57 2,500 3 2,560
Mr. Lai Yat Kwong RANTE - 57 - 3 60
Non-executive directors FBTES
Mr. Leo Kan Kin Leung AR R f4E 5 20 - - 25
Mr. Frank Bleackley Frank Bleackley FTHE 50 50 - - 100
Prof. Julia Tsuei Jo ERHIE 50 50 - - 100
Ms. Miranda Ho Mo Han (EES ko 50 50 - - 100
Mr. Paul Michael James Kirby Paul Michael James Kirby 5t 4 50 416 - - 466
Ms. Shirley Ha Suk Ling BRLzt 5 15 - - 20
210 715 2,500 6 3,431
Year ended 30 June 2009 HE-ZTAFAAA=TALEE
Performance Retirement
Salaries related benefit Total
and other incentive scheme directors’
Fees benefits payments  contributions  emoluments
\ HeR RIEEE  BRER  EEMR
bk Hipighl Bz s SHE|ftER k)
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHT FHET FHET FHET
(Note)
(BE)
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Paul Kan Man Lok g - 57 - 3 60
Mr. Lai Yat Kwong BAXESE - 57 - 3 60
Non-executive directors FHITES
Mr. Leo Kan Kin Leung BEREE 5 20 = - 25
Prof. Liang Xiong Jian* R RHIR 50 50 - - 100
Prof. Ye Pei Da* BEIE R 20 21 - - 41
Mr. Frank Bleackley Frank Bleackley ke 50 50 = = 100
Prof. Julia Tsuei Jo ERH 50 50 - - 100
Ms. Miranda Ho Mo Han ARz 50 50 - - 100
Mr. Paul Michael James Kirby ~ Paul Michael James Kirby %t 4 50 420 = - 470
Ms. Shirley Ha Suk Ling BRRit 5 15 - = 20
280 790 - 6 1,076

*

Prof. Liang Xiong Jian was resigned on 30 June 2009.
Prof. Ye Pei Da was retired on 27 November 2008.

Note: The performance related incentive payment is discretionary

as may be decided by the board of directors provided

that the total amount of bonus payable to all members of
the board of directors for such year shall not exceed eight
percent of the consolidated profit after taxation of the Group.
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Note: — continued

Information regarding directors’ and employees’

emoluments — continued
Employees

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE IR E M

For The Year Ended 30 June 2010 HE—Z—ZTF,~A=1HILFE

MieE : -4
EHESHESME 2 ER-F

&S

The five highest paid individuals of the Group included one (2009: NREFBRNSZEHATERBREARNT —R(ZZEENF - 8)E

nil) director of the Company, details of whose emoluments are set

£ HMeFRBE RN EX - AEEBEAKENE(ZTTAF &

out above. The aggregate emoluments of the remaining four (2009: B o AT (WHEARRBZESR) NS EENOT ¢
five) highest paid employees of the Group, not being directors of

the Company, are as follows:

2010 2009

—E-ZF —TThE

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FHT

Salaries and other benefits R E bR R 5,038 6,737
Performance related incentive payments BRIERRBER 2z #e 62 420
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RREFIFT B 581 805
5,681 7,962

Emoluments of these employees were within the following bands:

ItEREEZMENFTIIEE :

Number of employee(s)

EEAH
2010 2009
—E-=F —TENF
HK$1,000,001 - HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 87T — 1,500,000 /87T 3 2
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 & 7T —2,000,000 /87T 1 3
2010 2009
—E-ZF —TENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHT
The charge comprises: TIE K B1E
Current tax: REERIE
Other jurisdictions Hth B A= = 1,062
- 1,062
Deferred taxation charge (note 27) BRERIAES B (MiFE27) 121 -
121 1,062
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Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2009:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits derived from
Hong Kong. No provision for taxation has been made as
the Group’s income neither arises in, nor is derived from
Hong Kong. Taxation in other jurisdictions is calculated at
the rates prevailing in the respective jurisdictions.

The low effective tax rate is attributable to the fact that a
substantial portion of the Group’s profit neither arises in,
nor is derived from, Hong Kong and is accordingly not
subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax and such profit is either
exempted from or not subject to taxation in any other
jurisdictions.

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit
per the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
as follows:

FERNSHIIAR B BB 2 BT ERTOENIR 16.6% (=
TTAF : 16.6%) ZHEFHE - HRAEE 2 WABRIE
REBRER - TIEREER - B REL TR - &
it A & 2 IR TYIR{E R BLAM & % B 3R A 2 B R a5t

st
= o
ZAF

ERBRRFEZRERASBARD &R B R
B TREREER  MBASMEENGSH - MtEs
MR E M B R E B R X B ABMEAIBIA -

REE 2 BUAS H EGA 2ERAR N EERMT

2010 2009
—E-2F ZETNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx F&T
Profit before taxation B Tt A s A 80,230 69,369
Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of HEBHNEHREA6.5%TE 2518
16.5% (2009: 16.5%) —ETNE - 16.5%) 13,238 11,446
Tax effect of profit exempted or not TR EL At B] A b [ EFA S0 TR 2%
subject to taxation in other jurisdictions BARM 2w 2 R E (15,606) (18,148)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries KB R FIRE 1 Bl A AT &
operating in other jurisdictions ZTEBE & - 476
Tax effect of income not taxable for EIATRRLTS B MEE 2 A
tax purposes 2B B (3,140) (3,773)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible AR B B < FZ
for tax purposes IR R 4,510 10,923
Utilisation of tax loss previously BT ARER TG EE
not recognised - (47e)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERZ BIERE 2 RS E 1,119 614
Taxation for the year NEE 2 FiTE 121 1,062
Kantone Holdings Limited
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2010 2009
—E-TF —TTHhF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHxT F&T
Final dividend proposed in scrip form HARMA BT VR ERER
equivalent to HK0.20 cents R 0.20 7811
(2009: HKO0.15 cents) per share, ZZTNF : 01581)
with a cash option ZEORAREARR S, - AIEER S 10,468 7,713
Interim dividend paid in scrip form EABRR B RIRERER
equivalent to HK0.20 cents % 0.20 711l
(2009: HKO0.25 cents) per share, —ZTTAF : 0.25781(0)
with a cash option ZHEIRRE - AEERS 10,357 10,148
Underprovision in prior year T EEBETRE - 930
20,825 18,791

The proposed final dividend for 2010 is calculated on the
basis of 5,234,207,576 shares (2009: 5,142,120,870
shares) in issue on 30 June 2010.

The calculation of the basic earnings per share is based
on the profit for the year attributable to owners of the
Company of HK$82,955,000 (2009: HK$71,068,000)
and on the weighted average number of shares of
5,161,273,000 shares (2009: 4,405,134,000 shares) in
issue.

The computation of diluted earnings per share in 2009 did
not assume the exercise of warrants as the exercise price
was higher than the average market prices of shares of the
Company. The warrants expired in January 2009.

No dilutive earnings per share is presented for the year
ended 30 June 2010 as there were no potential dilutive
shares during the year.
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AR SRR M

For The Year Ended 30 June 2010 #HE—Z—ZFNA=1+HILFE

Plant and
machinery and

Land and telecommunications

buildings networks Total
B - #as
T REF RESHESK At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHBT FExT THET
COST RAE
At 1 July 2008 RZZEZNFLA—H 23,682 356,971 380,653
Currency realignment b AR (4,148) (58,925) (63,073)
Additions NE 1,085 10,296 11,381
Disposals & (1,005) (604) (1,609)
At 30 June 2009 RZZTNFAA=1H 19,614 307,738 327,352
Currency realignment Rk (1,103) (24,180) (25,283)
Additions NE = 14,749 14,749
Disposals HE - (709) (709)
At 30 June 2010 R-ZT—ZFA=1H 18,511 297,598 316,109
DEPRECIATION AND ERREE
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 July 2008 RZZEZENFEH—H 6,628 336,924 343,552
Currency realignment b AR (1,106) (55,933) (57,039)
Provided for the year FRE 312 6,875 7,187
Eliminated on disposals o 5 R AR (701) (482) (1,183)
At 30 June 2009 RZETNFA=1H 5,133 287,384 292,517
Currency realignment bE AR 417) (22,389) (22,806)
Provided for the year FREHE 208 7,400 7,608
Eliminated on disposals o 5 R AR - (681) 681)
At 30 June 2010 RZZE-ZFXA=1H 4,924 271,714 276,638
CARRYING VALUES BREE
At 30 June 2010 R_ZT—ZTFA=1H 13,587 25,884 39,471
At 30 June 2009 RZZTNFAA=1H 14,481 20,354 34,835
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2010 2009
—E-ZF —EThF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FBT FHET
The carrying values of the Group’s property N2 8 2 ¥ 3 # 5
interests comprise: BREERIE :
Freehold properties held outside REBAIMNOEFEE
Hong Kong KA ZERE 2 W3 13,368 14,238
Properties held outside Hong Kong REBLAIMDR B REIRA
under long leases (Note) pa/EACEED) 219 243
13,587 14,481

At 30 June 2010, certain land and buildings of the
Group with a carrying value of HK$7,933,000 (2009:
HK$10,262,000) were pledged to a bank as security for
banking facilities granted to the Group.

Note: Owner-occupied leasehold land is included in property,
plant and equipment as the allocations between the land
and buildings elements cannot be made reliably.

The Group leases equipment to customers on

operating lease terms. The carrying value of such
equipment, which is included in plant and machinery and
telecommunications networks, is as follows:

R-ZE—ZFFXA=1TH  AEERE(ES 7,933,000
T (ZZTNEF:10,262,000/87T) 2 & T L RIEFEE
HTRIT - AERAKERGRITRE 2R -

i mRLRRETRA TR RS - BEAERLR
DLW AE - BR RS -

AEEREEHESABERETER - EftARE A
BERBEBRAZEHREZREEHFINOT

2010 2009

—E-ZF ZTThF

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FET FHT

Customer equipment at cost KP4 (IR A E) 74,419 81,126
Less: Accumulated depreciation B BEHTE (73,402) (79,968)
Carrying value BREE 1,017 1,158
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For The Year Ended 30 June 2010 #HE—Z—ZFNA=1+HILFE

2010 2009
—E-ZF ZEENEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
COST RAE
At beginning of the year F7) 2,392,154 1,837,951
Currency realignment b A 25 13
Transferred from deposits and prepaid B aiRe RFENFERAR
development costs 549,822 414,960
Additions NE - 139,230
At end of the year Fih 2,942,001 2,392,154
AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT B RRE
At beginning of the year FH) 1,298,121 875,971
Provided for the year REF G 371,310 321,725
Impairment loss recognised EHRERREERE - 100,425
At end of the year Fik 1,669,431 1,298,121
CARRYING VALUE BREE
At end of the year F 4L 1,272,570 1,094,033

Development costs for systems and networks include all
direct costs incurred in setting up and development of
systems and networks. The Group’s development costs
for systems and networks (other than those that are not
yet implemented for intended use) are amortised over
the estimated economic useful lives of a maximum of five
years.

In the prior year, the management conducted a review of
the Group’s development costs for systems and networks
in light of the current market condition and determined
that certain development costs for systems and networks
were impaired based on the estimated recoverable
amounts with reference to their values in use. The value in
use was determined based on the estimated future cash
flows discounted at a rate of 10% (2010: 8%) per annum.
Accordingly, impairment losses of HK$100,425,000

were recognised in the prior year. In the current year,

no impairment was recognised after management’s
assessment on individual systems and networks.
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For The Year Ended 30 June 2010 HZE—-Z

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated,
at acquisition, to the following cash generating unit
(“CGU”):

wRE IR E M

—EEAASTALFR

EBAGATREE 2 BTN ER SR E 5 ZIRE A
([#IREEN]) -

2010 & 2009
—E-ZFR
—EERE
HK$’000
TR
Provision of e-lottery services RHEFEERE
(included in the systems sales and (BRIARGHE RAFFTHESRR)
licensing segment) 36,795

For each of the years ended 30 June 2010 and 2009,
management of the Group determines that there was no
impairment of its CGU containing goodwiill.

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined from
value in use calculations. The key assumptions for the
value in use calculations are those regarding the discount
rate, growth rate and expected changes to selling prices
and direct costs during the period. Management estimates
discount rate using pre-tax rate that reflect current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the CGU. The growth rate is based on industry
growth forecasts. Changes in selling prices and direct
costs are based on past practices and expectations of
future changes in the market.

During the year, the Group performed impairment review
for goodwill based on cash flow forecasts derived from the
most recent financial budgets per annum and projected for
the next four (2009: four) years and discounted at a rate of
10% (2009: 10%) per annum which reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the CGU. The growth rate is based on industry
growth forecasts. Since the recoverable amount of CGU
exceeded the carrying amount, no impairment loss was
considered necessary.
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For The Year Ended 30 June 2010 #E—Z—ZFNA=1HILFE

Licence
rights
HEETIE
HK$'000
FHT
COST RAE
Balance at 1 July 2008, 30 June 2009 R=ZZFZENFLA—HB —ZTZNFAA=1H
and 30 June 2010 k=T —TFA=THz&EH 11,800
AMORTISATION ey
Balance at 1 July 2008 RZZZTENFEA—BZE&EH 6,490
Charge for the year F R 2,360
Balance at 30 June 2009 RZTTNFANA=TRHZER 8,850
Charge for the year FEEH 2,360
Balance at 30 June 2010 RZZE-—ZESA=THZER 11,210
CARRYING VALUE AREE
At 30 June 2010 R_E—ZTFA=1+H 590
At 30 June 2009 RZEZENFANA=1H 2,950
The licence rights for provision of e-lottery services were RBEFE  ARRBRBREETFRHEER S #
acquired as part of a business combination in previous EREBEMH 87 A STEAEAFH - I
years. The licence rights have definite useful lives and are FRPTERER 2 BRI sk L4 (ARG B R 2E ) A B A4 8K -

amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of the
right granted or 5 years, whichever is shorter.
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2010 2009
—E-ZF —EThF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT F&T
Unlisted equity securities, at cost, AT FIBIRKANETE 2
in respect of: FELETRAES ¢
— Interest in e-commerce projects —REFRHEIER 2= 28,094 28,094
— Others —Hh - 54,238
Impairment loss recognised ERRZBEEE (28,094) (82,332)
Unlisted debt securities with RATHIBABRER R 2
guaranteed return, in respect of: EETEBES
— Interest in e-commerce projects —RETRHEIER 2= 98,957 98,957
— Others —Hftb 122,296 358,998
Capital receipt from the investments &7 BEARWES (221,253) (306,857)
Impairment loss recognised RERBERSE - (56,014)
- 95,084

The unlisted debt securities with guaranteed return
represent the Group’s investments in certain securities
which have guaranteed a pre-determined return to the
Group over a fixed period of time. The pre-determined
returns are non-interest bearing and are denominated in
United State dollar. Payments receivables each year for
investments with pre-determined return are apportioned
between income and reduction of the carrying value of
the investments so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of
return.

In the current year, the Group disposed of certain unlisted
investments to independent third parties with carrying
amount of HK$85,122,000 for an equivalent amount of
consideration. Hence, no gain or loss was recognised on
disposal of these investments.

The unlisted equity investments represent investments

in unlisted equity securities issued by private entities
incorporated outside Hong Kong. They are measured at
cost less any accumulated impairment losses at the end
of the reporting period because the range of reasonable
fair value estimates is so significant that the management
are of the opinion that their fair values cannot be measured
reliably.

In prior year, the management determined that

certain unlisted debt securities with guaranteed return
were irrecoverable. Full provision for impairment of
HK$56,014,000 were made in the prior year in respect of
these debt securities.
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For The Year Ended 30 June 2010 #HE—Z—ZFNA=1+HILFE

The management conducted a review of the Group’s
deposits and prepaid development costs in light of the
current market condition and determined that certain
deposits and prepaid development costs were impaired
based on the estimated recoverable amounts with
reference to their values in use. The value in use are
determined based on the estimated future cash flows
discounted at a rate of 8% (2009: 10%) per annum.

During the year, the management has determined that no
future benefit will be generated for certain specific projects.
Accordingly, the carrying amounts of the related deposits
and prepaid development costs were fully impaired,
amounting to HK$85,800,000 (2009: HK$40,560,000).

EEERRENTAHARE 2 RE RIANFEKALE
TEE ITR2EREZERABEMMGA 2T DS
B ORAERETHRERANRAEXRAETRE - £HE
ENRBERRKASRIBFNEEY (ZTTNEF:
10% ) RhIRMEERE o

TR BEEERRETHEEE AR TEEEMa i)
HRREIIZ & MR RN 2 REED AR E - &85
85,800,000/87T (ZZFZ /L4 + 40,560,000/ 7T) °

2010 2009

—E-ZF ZEENEF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FAT

Raw materials R 13,862 13,728
Work in progress ER G 2,965 3,111
Finished goods Rk R 7,948 7,702
24,775 24,541

2010 2009

—E-EF —TTNF

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FHET FAT

Trade receivables U B SRR 331,412 339,130
Guaranteed distribution receivables FEWRTE IR - 44,838
Advance to suppliers and other receivables 8% & p5 28 K E UL Ath BR X 125,882 121,577
457,294 505,545

The Group maintains a well-defined credit policy regarding REBREZESREFETHEZEERER - BREREZ

its trade customers depending on their credit worthiness,
nature of services and products, industry practice and
condition of the market with credit period ranging from 30
days to 180 days. The guaranteed distribution receivables,
advance to suppliers and other receivables are unsecured,
non-interest bearing and repayable on demand, which are
expected to be realised in the next twelve months from the
end of the reporting period.
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For The Year Ended 30 June 2010 HE—Z—ZTF,NA=1HILFE

The aged analysis of trade receivables presented based
on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period is as
follows:

EWE ZEREFARE AR RIEREARRE ST
EXUaNE

2010 2009

—E-EF —TTNF

HK$’000 HK$'000

TEx FHIT

0 - 60 days 0—60H 149,575 176,575
61 - 90 days 61 — 90 H 111,772 106,104
91 — 180 days 91 — 180 H 70,065 51,326
> 180 days >180H - 5,125
331,412 339,130

Before accepting any new customer, the Group’s finance
and sales management team would assess the potential
customer’s credit quality and define credit limits for the
customers. Limits attributable to customers are reviewed
regularly with reference to past settlement history. The
Group’s finance and sales management team considers
trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired to
be of a good credit quality as continuous repayments have
been received.

As at 30 June 2009, the Group’s trade receivable balance
included debtors with aggregate carrying amount of
HK$5,125,000 (2010: nil) which were past due at the
reporting date for which the Group has not provided for
impairment loss. The Group did not hold any collateral over
these balances. The age of these receivables is ranged
from 180 days to 320 days.

The deposits, bank balances and cash comprises short-
term deposits with maturity of three months or less and
cash held by the Group. The deposits carry interest at an
average rate of 0.3% (2009: 0.8%) per annum.

Certain bank balances and cash of HK$7,794,000 (2009:
HK$4,578,000) were denominated in Renminbi (‘RMB”),
which is not freely convertible currency in the international
market. The exchange rate of RMB is determined by the
Government of the PRC and the remittance of these funds
out of the PRC is subject to exchange restrictions imposed
by the Government of the PRC.
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AR ISR E M

As at 30 June 2010, the balance of trade and other
payables included trade payables of HK$12,908,000
(2009: HK$10,712,000). The aged analysis of trade
payables presented based on the invoice date at the end
of the reporting period is as follows:

For The Year Ended 30 June 2010 #E—Z—ZFNA=1HILFE

R-ZE—ZFEXA=1H " BNESREMERZEH
45 12,908,000 T (ZZTZNF 1 10,712,00077T) 2
ENE SRR - B E ZRFNFE R LR RIBESE
AEZ BRER D AT 25T

2010 2009
—E-BF ZTThF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
0 - 60 days 0—60H 11,122 8,029
61 — 90 days 61 — 90 H 547 775
91 — 180 days 91 — 180 H 1,239 874
> 180 days >180H - 1,034
12,908 10,712
The credit period for purchases of goods ranged from 30 BEEMIEEBRNTI0HER -
days to 60 days.
Other payables mainly represent receipt in advance and ERNEARREZEATERKIBERBIREA -
accruals.
2010 2009
—E-ZF ZEThF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FHIT
At 1 July RntA—H 1,513 2,136
Currency realignment (ERTIE (154) (314)
Provided during the year FREEE 1,124 1,932
Utilised during the year FAEFHA (1,341) (2,241)
At 30 June ANA=1H 1,142 1,513

The warranty provision represents the management’s best
estimate of the Group’s liability under 12-month warranties
granted on manufactured products, based on prior
experience and industry average for defective products.
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For The Year Ended 30 June 2010 HE—Z—ZTF,NA=1HILFE

2010 2009
—E-TF —EThF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT

Bank loans comprise the following: RITEREIE TS EIE
Secured [EEwi 33,233 40,069
Unsecured AR 1 14,000 =
47,233 40,069

The bank borrowings were secured by the Group’s land
and buildings with carrying value of HK$7,933,000 (2009:
HK$10,262,000).

RITERBANEEAREFE /7,933,008 T (Z2F
JUE 1 10,262,000 47T ) 2 i RAEFEHE A -

2010 2009
—E-ZF ZEENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FAT
Bank loans bear interest LRI IS Z
at prevailing market rates and FTRZIRITER
are repayable as follows: MEEFEMT ¢
Within one year —FR 18,183 3,043
More than one year but not BB —F BT BBRE
exceeding two years 4,183 4,565
More than two years but not BBREETNEB=F
exceeding three years 24,867 32,461
47,233 40,069
Less: Amount due within one year shown & : —FAEIEWE
under current liabilities SItERE BB 28R (18,183) (3,043)
Amount due after one year —FREIB &R 29,050 37,026

The above bank loans bear variable interest ranging from
1.25% t0 2.09% (2009: 1.25% to 5.85%) per annum.

As at 30 June 2009, the other borrowings represented
block discounting loans which were payable within one
year and bore variable interest ranging from 9% to 11% per
annum. The amount was fully repaid during the year.
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For The Year Ended 30 June 2010 #HE—Z—ZFNA=1+HILFE

Defined contribution scheme

Certain subsidiaries of the Company participate in a
retirement benefit scheme covering a portion of their
employees. The assets of the scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in funds under the control of
independent trustees.

The retirement benefit scheme contributions charged to
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
represent contributions payable to the funds by the Group
at rates specified in the rules of the scheme. Where there
are employees who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully
in the contributions, the contribution payable by the Group
is reduced by the amount of forfeited contributions.

Commencing from December 2000, the Group enrolled
all eligible employees in Hong Kong into a mandatory
provident fund (the “MPF”) scheme. The retirement benefit
cost of the MPF scheme charged to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income represents
contributions to the MPF scheme by the Group at rates
specified in the rules of the MPF scheme.

During the year, retirement benefit scheme contributions
paid for the above scheme, amounted to HK$309,000
(2009: HK$277,000).

Defined benefit scheme

Certain subsidiaries of the Company operate a self-
administered and funded pension scheme. The scheme
provides defined pension benefits related to the final salary
of the members at retirement and their length of service.
The scheme is closed to new members.

The contributions which are determined by a qualified
actuary on the basis of triennial valuations using

the projected unit credit method are charged to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income. Under
the scheme, the employees are entitled to a pension
between 1.67% and 2.50% of final salary for each year

of pensionable service at an age of 65. No other post-
retirement benefits are provided. The most recent actuarial
valuations of scheme assets and the present value of

the defined benefit obligations were carried out at 31
December 2008 by Ms. Alison Bostock (“Ms. Bostock”),
Fellow of the Institute of Actuaries, and were updated to
30 June 2010 by Ms. Bostock for the accounting reporting
purpose. The assumptions which have the most significant
effect on the results of the valuation are those relating to
the rate of return on investments and the rates of increase
in salaries, pensions and share dividends.
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For The Year Ended 30 June 2010 HE—Z—ZTF,NA=1HILFE

Defined benefit scheme — continued
The main actuarial assumptions used were as follows:

SRR 84
P2 E B EBRIAT -

At 30 June 2010 At 30 June 2009

R=B—BF RZZTZTNF

NA=1H NA=1H

Discount rate BhIR 2 5.40% 6.40%
Expected return on scheme assets TEEA 2 ETEI B EE B3R 6.90% 7.00%
Expected rate of salary increase TEHAZ e IR 3.40% 3.50%
Future pension increases KRR ZBKREFHIE 3.40% 3.50%

The actuarial valuation updated to 30 June 2010 by Ms.
Bostock showed that the market value of the scheme
assets was HK$223,371,000 (2009: HK$210,234,000)
and that the actuarial value of these assets represented
68% (2009: 69%) of the benefits that had accrued to
members. The shortfall of HK$10,407,000, which is the
excess of net unrecognised actuarial losses over the
greater of 10% of the fair value of schemed assets and
10% of the present value of funded obligations, is to be
cleared over the estimated remaining service period of
current membership of 10 years.

Amounts recognised in profit or loss in respect of the
defined benefit pension scheme are as follows:

RIZBostock K TEFHE—ZT—TF ,NA= 'HEIZFMfE
EET  sHEIEE 2 TEA223,371,000/8 T (ZEZE A
#:210,234,000787L) ' MZEEEZFEEBEAZERE
BESERNZ68%(—TTNF 69%) ° 7%%110407000
BT ZEBREE AR BEEBFERRTEEER
E%Zm%ﬁkiﬁ@%ﬁzfﬁﬁmo%(Mfm%;%ﬁ-)z%z
B RNIRBEE 2 B RIS IRIS S 8 A0 45T RIB
IR ©

SUERBARRG BN BRTER 2SR T

2010 2009

—E-FF —ETNF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHT FHIT

Current service cost RITARFS A A 3,161 3,085
Interest on obligation I 2 T B 18,646 18,423
Expected return on plan assets sHEIEE 2 FEH B3R (14,304) (15,935)
7,503 SIoNE!

The charge for the year has been included in cost of sales.

The amount included in the consolidated statement of
financial position arising from the Group’s obligations in

respect of its defined benefit pension scheme is as follows:

REEZHEAAHERA

RAREE 2 EREMERGTEFAEMELEZ BT A
fRaMBARRE - Bt

2010 2009

s ZTThF

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FHET F#IT

Fair value of scheme assets FEIBEEZ ATEE 223,371 210,234
Present value of funded obligations BoEECBRE (328,404) (303,635)
Net unrecognised actuarial loss RERZ BE BT 43,247 22,112
(61,786) (71,289)
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For The Year Ended 30 June 2010 #HE—Z—ZFNA=1+HILFE

Defined benefit scheme — continued
Movements in the present value of the defined benefit

obligation are as follows:

ERBERGE -2
SERRANREZ REZSHIT

2010 2009

—E-FF ZETNF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FExT FAT

At beginning of the year F4) 303,635 346,394

Currency realignment b 5 R (28,315) (62,883)

Service cost BRAS R AR 3,161 3,085

Interest cost FERZA 18,646 18,423

Actuarial loss BHEER 40,440 11,059

Contributions R 1,562 1,409

Benefits paid Frfst 4@ (10,725) (13,852)

At end of the year Fiy 328,404 303,635
Movements in the fair value of plan assets are as follows: SEIEEZ ATFEEZESNT ¢

2010 2009

—E-ZF —TENF

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FET FAT

At beginning of the year F1) 210,234 261,287

Currency realignment I 5 3R (19,370) (47,409)

Expected return on plan assets sHEIEE 2 FAH B3R 14,304 15,935

Actuarial gain (loss) BE W (518) 16,112 (16,964)

Contributions K 12,816 11,237

Benefits paid Frist4a R (10,725) (13,852)

At end of the year F 4L 223,371 210,234

The fair value of plan assets and the expected rate of return

AEBEERRENTER 2 XA FEERARRREOH

at the end of the reporting period is analysed as follows: R -
Fair value of
Expected return plan assets
FE A Bl 3R = STEEEC AT EE

2010 2009 2010 2009
—ET-TF —TTNF ZB—BF —TTIF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Equity instruments EmTH 7.20% 7.40% 199,283 184,165
Debt instruments B TR 4.20% 4.40% 23,902 23,546
Other assets HE&EE 0.50% 0.50% 186 2,523
223,371 210,234
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For The Year Ended 30 June 2010 #HZE_-ZT—

Defined benefit scheme — continued

The weighted average rate of return of assets held is
6.90% (2009: 7.00%). The overall expected rate of return
is a weighted average of the expected returns of the
various categories of plan assets held. The assumptions
used in determining the overall expected return of the
scheme have been set with reference to yields available on
government bonds and appropriate risk margins.

The actual return on plan assets was HK$30,416,000
(2009: actual loss on plan assets of HK$1,029,000).

The history of the plan for the current and prior periods is
as follows:

wRE IR E M

TEXASHALER

EEEAETE -2

FIBEEZMEFHERE K6.90% (=TT NF :
7.00%) - BEETBHABRE Y BFHETRER 2 81E
ETEHE®R 2 EFEE - AREE8 2 EEED
HBRID2BENES 2 WG E LA 2 BRRED
EJE °

FHEIEE 2 B¥R[E1$745 30,416,000/ T (ZETNEF : 5
I8 E 2 B8 1,029,000 7T) °

A BN AR KB B 2 FesR T

2010 2009 2008
—E-FF —"TTNF —TIT)\F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FExT FHT FAT
Present value of defined TEREEAEECRE
benefit obligation 328,404 303,635 346,394
Fair value of plan assets FrEIEEZ AT EER (223,371) (210,234) (261,287)
Deficit &4t 105,033 93,401 85,107
Experience adjustments sTEIBE AR
on plan liabilities 40,440 11,059 (12,997)
Experience adjustments FrEIEEZAERAE
on plan assets 16,112 (16,964) 4,186
The following is the deferred taxation liability recognised ERERZBEERBABEREEEHNT -

and movement thereon:

Accelerated tax depreciation

DR BB
2010 2009
—E-ZF —EThF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FT
Balance at beginning of the year FHEH 143 157
Currency realignment (RS 17 (14)
Charged to profit or loss Ba AR 121 -
Balance at end of the year FREEH 281 143
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused RBEEHZER AEBEARAPTAZHEBEERELD
tax losses of approximately HK$41,261,000 (2009: 41,261 OOO/’%E( “ZTAF : 34,479,000 7T) © Al A
HK$34,479,000) available for offset against future profits. EESE RE 2 m Bl o AR REETRRI B 18 2% F 2R - &

No deferred tax asset has been recognised due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. These tax losses
may be carried forward indefinitely.
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For The Year Ended 30 June 2010 #E—Z—ZFNA=1HILFE

Number of shares Amount
R EHE %)
‘000 HK$'000
LA BT FHT
Authorised share capital of HK$0.1 each: BREEI BT AERA
Balance at 1 July 2008, 30 June 2009 R=ZEZENEtA—H —ZTZThEXA
and 30 June 2010 =tHR-_E—ZFA=tHZ&H 12,000,000 1,200,000
Issued and fully paid share capital of HK$0.1 each: SBIREI{E 0.1 8T 2 B 31T RAEIRA
Balance at 1 July 2008 RZZTNGFLA—HA 2R 3,411,059 341,106
Issue of shares as 2008 final scrip dividend BIIROERZSENERMUBRRE 27,847 2,785
Issue of shares as 2009 interim scrip dividend BIIRDIERZZTNFREARAKS 68,314 6,831
Issue of shares upon exercise of the Warrants TR RBRIE B B P2 T 2 AR 1D 140 14
Issue of shares on acquisition of a subsidiary WeBEH B 1 RIS P B 1T 2 AR 1D 620,000 62,000
Issue of share upon rights issue R FTEE 1T 2 BR 1D 1,014,761 101,476
Balance at 30 June 2009 and 1 July 2009 RZZENEAA=THK 5,142,121 514,212
—TTNELB—AZEH
Issue of shares as 2009 final scrip dividend BARMERZSTNFRBURKE 36,777 3,678
Issue of shares as 2010 interim scrip dividend BIIROER-S—SFFHIUBRRE 55,310 5,531
Balance at 30 June 2010 RZZE-—TFSA=THz &R 5,234,208 523,421

During the year, the following changes in the share capital
of the Company took place:

(@)

In January 2010, 36,776,907 shares of HK$0.1 each
were issued at a price of HK$0.162 per share upon
election by shareholders to receive shares in the
Company in lieu of the 2009 final dividend in cash,
pursuant to the scrip dividend scheme as detailed in a
circular dated 21 December 2009;

In June 2010, 55,309,799 shares of HK$0.1 each
were issued at a price of HK$0.14 per share upon
election by shareholders to receive shares in the
Company in lieu of the 2010 interim dividend in cash,
pursuant to the scrip dividend scheme as detailed in a
circular dated 12 May 2010;

All shares issued rank pari passu with the then existing
shares in issue in all respects.
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For The Year Ended 30 June 2010 #HZE_-ZT—

Warrants

On 26 October 2007, the Company proposed a bonus
issue of warrants (the “Warrants”) to the shareholders of
the Company whose names appeared on the register of
members on 23 November 2007 (the “Record Date”).
Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on the Record
Date, 594,519,627 units of the Warrants were issued to
the shareholders of the Company to subscribe for shares
of HK$0.1 each of the Company at an initial subscription
price of HK$0.81 per share. The Warrants expired on 8
January 2009.

During the year ended 30 June 2009, 139,601 (2010:
nil) units of the Warrants carrying subscription rights of
HK$113,077 (2010: nil) were exercised.

Each of the Company, Champion, and a fellow subsidiary,
DIGITALHONGKONG.COM (“Digital HK”), has a share
option scheme under which eligible persons, including
directors of the Company, Champion, Digital HK or any
of their respective subsidiaries, may be granted options
to subscribe for shares of the Company, Champion and
Digital HK respectively.

(i) The Company
On 29 November 2002, the Company adopted
the share option scheme (the “Scheme”) which,
with a remaining life of about 2 years, will expire on
28 November 2012. The purpose of the Scheme
is to attract and to retain quality personnel and to
provide them with incentive to contribute to the
business and operation of the Group. Under the
Scheme, the directors may grant options to any
eligible persons of the Group, including directors,
employees, consultants, advisors in respect of
business, operation, management, technology, legal,
accounting and financial matters of the Company,
its subsidiaries or affiliates or any discretionary trust
whose discretionary objects include the aforesaid
persons or a company beneficially owned by the
aforesaid persons as well as customers and suppliers
of the Group, to subscribe for shares of the Company.
Options granted are exercisable at any time for a
period determined by its directors which will be less
than ten years from the date of grant, where the
acceptance date should not be later than 21 days after
the date of offer.
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For The Year Ended 30 June 2010 #HE—Z—ZFNA=1+HILFE

(i)

(i)

The Company — continued

The exercise price per share (subject to adjustment
as provided therein) of the option under the Scheme
is the highest of (i) the nominal value of the shares;
(i) the closing price per share as stated in the daily
quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date
of grant, which must be a business day; and (jii) the
average closing price per share as stated in the daily
quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of
grant. The maximum number of shares in respect of
which the options may be granted under the Scheme
shall not exceed 10% of the issued share capital of
the Company at the date of approval of the Scheme.
The total maximum number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options must
not exceed 30% of the issued share capital of the
Company from time to time. The number of shares
in respect of which options may be granted to any
individual in any 12-month period is not permitted to
exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue
on the last date of such 12-month period, without
prior approval from the Company’s shareholders. No
option under the Scheme has been granted since its
adoption.

Champion

On 29 November 2002, Champion adopted a share
option scheme (the “Champion Option Scheme”). The
purpose of the Champion Option Scheme is to attract
and to retain quality personnel and other persons
and to provide them with incentive to contribute to
the business and operation of Champion and its
subsidiaries (the “Champion Group”). Under the
Champion Option Scheme, the directors may grant
options to any directors, employees, consultants,
advisors in respect of business, operation,
management, technology, legal, accounting and
financial matters of Champion, its subsidiaries or
affiliates or any discretionary trust whose discretionary
objects include the aforesaid persons or a company
beneficially owned by the aforesaid persons as well as
customers and suppliers of the Champion Group, to
subscribe for shares of Champion. The option granted
by Champion is exercisable at any time for a period
determined by its directors which will be less than ten
years from the date of grant.
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Champion - continued

The exercise price per share (subject to adjustment as
provided therein) of the option under the Champion
Option Scheme is the highest of (i) the nominal value
of the shares; (ii) the closing price per share as stated
in the daily quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange on
the date of grant, which must be a business day; and
(iii) the average closing price per share as stated in the
daily quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of
grant. No option has been granted by Champion under
the Champion Option Scheme since its adoption.

DIGITAL HK

On 29 November 2002, Digital HK adopted a share
option scheme (the “DHK Option Scheme”). The purpose
of the DHK Option Scheme s to attract and to retain
quality personnel and other persons and to provide them
with incentive to contribute to the business and operation
of Digital HK and its subsidiaries (the “Digital HK Group”).
Under the DHK Option Scheme, the directors may
grant options to any directors, employees, consultants,
advisors in respect of business, operation, management,
technology, legal, accounting and financial matters of
Digital HK; its subsidiaries or affiliates or any discretionary
trust whose discretionary objects include the aforesaid
persons or a company beneficially owned by the
aforesaid persons as well as customers and suppliers of
the Digital HK Group, to subscribe for shares of Digital
HK. Options granted by Digital HK are exercisable at any
time for a period determined by its directors which will be
less than ten years from the date of grant.

The exercise price per share (subject to adjustment as
provided therein) of the option under the DHK Option
Scheme is the highest of (i) the nominal value of the
shares; (i) the closing price per share as stated in the
daily quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange on the
date of grant, which must be a business day; and (iii)
the average closing price per share as stated in the
daily quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of
grant. No option has been granted by Digital HK under
the DHK Option Scheme since its adoption.
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The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued
share capital, reserves and retained profits.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
on a bi-annual basis. As part of this review, the directors
consider the cost of capital and the risks associated with
each class of capital. Based on recommendations of the
directors, the Group will balance its overall capital structure
through the new share issues and share buy-backs as
well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing
debt.

FEEERHEERAUABRANEELSBERAFELE?
% AREBERLEAERRAZ FERTHE W RRE
[El - A&z BRI EEF—H -

REBZ ERNEBREARAER ARGHER (AE BT
PRA - B RAREENPTAEK) ©

ARAEBZEBLFRHUENERE  (FREHZ 8D
ESeEBEAKRARERAERZABRR - RIZE
EZER ARERERBITHRD - DERY RET
HERBORE BE  ATEEEENGERS -

2010 2009
—E-ZF ZEENFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FiT
Capital expenditure in respect of property, EREERFTL 2 EBYE -
plant and equipment and development R K s L R 5
costs for systems and networks Pg 2z ABKAEZ
authorised but not contracted for B 76,440 89,700
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The Group as lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had future
minimum lease payments payable under non-cancellable
operating leases in respect of rented premises and motor
vehicles which fall due as follows:

AEBERAEA

RIRETER  AEBZEERERBMERRBE 2T
A EHER BB 2 HEREN HEE 2 B BfE
WA :

2010 2009
—E-ZF ZEENFE
Land and Motor Land and Motor
buildings vehicles buildings vehicles
T RIEF RE THREF T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
FET FET FHBxT FAET
Operating leases which expire: 5 ERE
ISEHEE
Within one year —FR 828 2,411 888 2,575
In the second to EFEENFR
fourth year inclusive 2,928 3,502 3,582 3,184
3,756 5,913 4,470 5,759

Leases are negotiated for terms of one to four years and
rentals are fixed for terms of one to four years.

The Group as lessor

At the end of the reporting period, the Group contracted
with tenants in respect of leasing of plant and machinery
and communication systems and equipment which fall due
as follows:

RiEpEZEEF P —FE0F  MASHR—FE
P4F 2 FHEEE

REBERHBEA
RE MR ARBE DR BERE k25U BE
R R REBRAPEIMAK - ERHERAT

2010 2009

—E-ZF ZETNF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FEx FHT

Within one year —FR 676 480
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_FEFERFA 17,817 20,519
After five years RAF% 5,461 5,726
23,954 26,725
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In September 2008, the Group acquired the entire issued RZTZNFNA » AEEWIEGood Holdings Limited 2
share capital of Good Holdings Limited for a consideration 2 IEEITIA - {84 328,600,0008 T © ABEITARA
of HK$328,600,000 satisfied entirely by the issue of 7 620,000,000 B AREI(E 0.1 B TT 2 AR 0 2B AY -

620,000,000 shares of HK$0.1 each of the Company.

The assets acquired at the date of acquisition were as UG EE B EAFTUEE 2 EEFS T -
follows:
Total
Bz
HK$'000
FHET
Assets acquired: Fr B & EE -
Deposits and prepaid development costs e RIBRAFEEKA 328,600
Total consideration @RE 328,600
Satisfied by: SRR
Shares of the Company (Note) AR ARG (F1EE) 328,600
The Group acquired Good Holdings Limited for the N &= E B Good Holdings Limited » B#EHE X MigE &
deposits and prepaid development costs which it has paid BT RIEE R AN AR RS e R B B AR R - B X
for development of gaming software and sports network UGB AR A—TE & EIREE
systems, and hence the acquisition was accounted for as
an acquisition of asset.
Note:  The acquisition was satisfied by the issue of 620,000,000 iz REWENNFEFAAQNAEREESRKRONBITEIT
ordinary shares of the Company with par value of 620,000,000 A% & @A L+ o "R R E@EAL 2 AFEE
HK$0.1 each. The fair value of the ordinary shares of /328,600,000 7T © JHRIWEE B 2 AHEBIREE -

the Company, determined using the published price
available at the date of the acquisition, amounted to
HK$328,600,000.
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During the year, the Group has the following transactions
with Champion and its subsidiaries other than the Group:

REFEA > AEEETEREMER B (REERIN)
EITTNIRS

2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FAT
Nature of transactions RS %R
Fees paid by the Group to Champion AEERN A REE ST
for the provision of office premises FRARAERERER
and facilities, and management EERGZER
services, on cost basis 500 100
Underwriting commission paid to AR B
Champion in respect of MBEXZ
rights issue of the Company BiERE - 1,251
500 1,351

These transactions were carried out after negotiation
between the Group and the respective related parties.
The fees paid for the provision of office premises and
facilities, and management services were in accordance to
the management agreement entered into with Champion
dated 20 December 1996, which was recently renewed
on 5 January 2010. The underwriting commission was

in accordance with the agreement entered into with
Champion dated 23 March 2009.

The key management personnel are the executive
directors of the Company and the five highest paid
individuals. The aggregate amount paid to them was
HK$8,301,000 (2009: HK$8,082,000) details of which are
set out in note 9.

During the year ended 30 June 2009, the Group acquired a
subsidiary for a consideration of HK$328,600,000 satisfied
by the issue of 620,000,000 shares of HK$0.1 each of the
Company.

85

WERXZHAEEEE B BEATERRET - FHL
A RERERERERRE AN 2 ERTIRER
—HARFET AT REBFI L 2ERHE XD
R-Z-—ZF-HARHEE - BHASHRER —2F
NF=A-+=HAEBFEI L ZH#TE -

FEEBABDNARRIZHTESRAZRRSHFAL
WEBES N 2 B4 48585 8,301,000 8T (— 2T N4
8,082,000 7T) + BRAFHIHEEAMIEEQ -

REBE_ZEZNFAA=ZTHLEE  A£EBWE—X
B AR - K8 4A328,600,000 7T » FiBEITANR A
620,000,000 IS AXE(E 0.1 78T 2 e 2 1+t »
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Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 30 June R-E—ZEFNA=1THER-_ZEZTAEFEA=1TH" ' &K
2010 and 30 June 2009 are as follows: RAEEZMBARZFFBEAT
Proportion of
Nominal value nominal value
Place of of issued of issued share
incorporation/ share capital/ capital held
Name of subsidiaries operations registered capital by the Company Principal activities
EMAL BRTRAHE KAREEZ
WEARBH Pk /EMmER ERTRAHELA TEER
Aspire Management Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary US$1,800,000 66.7% Investment holding
RBSRARES E3AM% 1,800,000 T REER
Bingo Profits Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary US$1 100% Investment holding
EBERRES a1 =T REER
China Sports Network Limited Samoa Ordinary US$1,000,000 100% Development of gaming
BEEGHS T3/A% 1,000,000% T software, sports contents,
sport websites and
sports network systems
REMEE T - 8RR
BERUREEREZR
Good Holdings Limited* Republic of Seychelles  Ordinary US$50,000 100% Investment holding
EERANE EiAi% 50,000 T BEER
Kantone (UK) Limited United Kingdom Ordinary £5,500,000 100% Investment holding
B L3R 5,500,000 58 REER
Keen Pacific Limited* Samoa Ordinary US$1 100% Provision of treasury
BEEGHES Lidk1ET services
R RS
M.C. Holdings Limited* Cayman Islands Ordinary £5,500,002 100% Investment holding
HERS T3EA% 5,500,002 8% REER
Multitone Electronica Brazil Ordinary R$300,000 100% Distribution of communication
Limitada i L% 300,000 E =/ systems and equipment
DEBERORRE
Multitone Electronics PLC United Kingdom Ordinary £3,830,107 100% Investment holding,
HE i@k 3,830,107 5% design and manufacture

of communication

systems and equipment
REER - Rt REEFT

FBERGRRE
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Annual Report 2010 86



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

wRE IR E M

For The Year Ended 30 June 2010 HE—Z—ZTF,NA=1HILFE

Proportion of
Nominal value nominal value
Place of of issued of issued share
incorporation/ share capital/ capital held
Name of subsidiaries operations registered capital by the Company Principal activities
MR BRTRAHE RNTIEGZ
L) g Fd-giut /AMER BRTRAEELS TRER
Multitone Electronics Malaysia Ordinary MR285,000 100% Manufacturing of
Sdn. Bhd. 5 Gl T3k 285,000 HR AT communication
systems and equipment
EEREZRRRE
Multiton Elektronik GmbH Germany Ordinary €1,022,584 100% Distribution of
2B L@ 1,022,584 BLE communication
systems and equipment
DIEBERRREE
Multitone Rentals Limited United Kingdom Ordinary £100 100% Leasing of communication
HE LRAT 100 285 systems and equipment
BERAGHERRE
Peak Vantage Limited* British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary US$1 100% Provision of treasury
Macau E@ER1ET services
REERRES/ RAEB RS
]
Pearl Delta Inc* Samoa Ordinary US$1 100% Provision of treasury
BEGHS T@ER1ET senvices
IR
Shenzhen Hengyu Science PRC Ordinary RMB24,000,000 66.7% Investment holding
and Technology Company H LA AR 24,000,000 7T REER
Limited*
BERE (R BRAR
Smart (Macao Commercial Macau Ordinary MOP100,000 100% Provision of services,
Offshore) Limited i A% 100,000 B9 software licensing
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Proportion of
Nominal value nominal value
Place of of issued of issued share
incorporation/ share capital/ capital held
Name of subsidiaries operations registered capital by the Company Principal activities
MR ERTRAEE RNTIEGZ
KEARER Fd-iut /EMER BRTRAHEELS TRER
Success (Macao Commercial Macau Ordinary MOP100,000 100% Provision of consultancy
Offshore) Limited ! /A% 100,000 8P services, research and
B CRPT&E 5 AR ) development, and
ARAA selling activities
REBERRE - HERAS
FHEES
Zonal Care Incorporated* British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary US$2 100% Strategic investments in
Macau LdkoxT advanced technology and
KEABRES e-commerce projects
/B RRERERRR
REFHEER

*  Directly held by the Company
#  Wholly owned foreign enterprise for a term of 20 years
commencing 17 October 2003.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
the results of the year or constituted a substantial portion
of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities subsisting
at 30 June 2010 and 30 June 2009 or at any time during
the year.
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Financial Summary

B REE

RESULTS E 45
Year ended 30 June
BERAZTALEE
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
“B-2E -TThE -TR\E -FTLE -BENE -TERE _EEME -EF-E -RECE -TEF
HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKBOOD  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HK$000
Thn TiEn TiEn TR T T ThT Fhn Fhn Fhn
TURNOVER Ly 1200616 1209084 1613048 1426505 1346804 1127326 1014640 814735 722360 699,790
PROFIT FROM ORDINARY RHFIEE
ACTIVITIES BEFORE £l
TAXATION
Continuing operations excluding ~ REFEMAET 2
other operating expenses BEAEER 166030 266368 473710 466036 369774 276349 204049 126366 67221 102668
Other operating expenses AfEEs (858000 (196,999 (334904  (5781) (8104 (7997 (48840 (15345 6972) (5T
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION BHATEN 80200 09369 138806 410255 331670 268362 185200 111011 (2508 97,09
TAXATION BE M2 (1060 (184 1) (115) (424) (057) (661) ") (784)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR REREH 80100 68307 136964 410254 331555 267928 164952 110350 (2578 96301
ATTRIBUTABLE TO: il
OWNERSOF THECOMPANY ~ AAFIEAEA 82955 71088 143010 412018 332700 267928 164867 110340 (578 96259
NON-CONTROLLING FERRR
INTERESTS B (2846) (2761  (6046) (1764 (1145 - 8 10 - 5
80100 68307 13694 410254 331555 267928 164952 110350 (2578 96301
DIVIDENDS e 085 18791 51728 120023 WM3 49755 8731 133% = =
2 ==
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
At 30 June
RAR=1A
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
ZE-%F _TINF -Z3)\F -t -EENE _3TRfF -EINE -53-F -33-F -—35-F
HK$000  HKSO000  HKSO000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO0D  HKS000  HK§O00  HKSO000  HK$O000
T ThL ThL T T i T ThL i i
TOTAL ASSETS BEEE 3057917 2995040 2545463 2405066 1923147 1393256 1064397 1022672 9709 849,940
TOTAL LIABILITIES L 181652 199517 266808 265043 238316 310423 237257 330506 3%85H0 261059
SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS REEs 2876265 2795523 2288655 2130413 1684831 1082833 827140 692166 588850 568,881
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO: AATHEEA
OWNERS OF THECOMPANY  fE(siEz: 2872938 2789377 2279155 2124524 1668550 1082740 827046 692156 588859 588,88
NON-CONTROLLING SRR
INTERESTS g% 3307 6,146 9500 14889 16,261 % o 10 = =
2876265 2795523 2288655 2130413 1684831 1082833 827140 692166 588850 568,881
EREEERAT
89 —TREER
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